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11,640 12,029 11,799 11,920 11,293
1,631,695 1,686,225 1,653,984 1,670,946 1,583,053
1,984 2,375 3,565 4,673 3,117
278,117 332,928 499,742 655,061 436,941
795 913 2,017 2,535 979
111,443 127,984 282,743 355,356 137,236
915 915 915 915 915
128,265 128,265 128,265 128,265 128,265
91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500
13,578 14,503 15,595 18,101 16,509
1,903,364 2,033,031 2,186,107 2,537,398 2,314,232
116,516 125,555 133,728 135,041 137,595
16,333,213 17,600,300 18,745,991 18,930,047 19,288,067
148.39 158.50 170.44 197.83 180.43
20,801 22,219 23,892 27,732 25,293
8.69 9.98 22.04 27.70 10.70
1,218 1,399 3,090 3,883 1,500
11.7 11.6 11.7 13.4 12.0
6.0 6.5 13.4 15.0 5.7
5,935 5,764 6,243 6,224 7,340
831,968 807,998 875,144 872,480 1,028,921
(3,016) (8,757) (11,491) (6,295) (8,387)
(422,783) (1,227,556) (1,610,808) (882,433) (1,175,690)
(4,495) 8,339 6,871 (346) (200)
(630,109) 1,168,961 963,177 (48,502) (28,036)
4,759 3,183 8,529 10,152 9,735
667,117 446,193 1,195,595 1,423,107 1,364,652
3,183 8,529 10,152 9,735 8,488
446,193 1,195,595 1,423,107 1,364,652 1,189,848
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$1,606 $2,416 $1,041
411 119 (62)
$2,017 $2,535 $979
2023
2022 2.5
2022 2023
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79
460
2023 TFSIC
2022 31 18.1
2022 31
111.7
31 6.8
2022
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2021 2022
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86
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31 109.7 2022 31 109.2
2021 31 7.0 2022 31 6.0
31
2021 2022
2021 2022 2023
2022 2023
$8,481 $8,337 $7,063 @)% (15)%
2,905 3,254 3,737 12% 15%
413 329 493 (20)% 50%
11,799 11,920 11,293 1% G)%
5,932 5,846 5,122 % A2)%
2,302 1,401 3,054 (39)% 118%
3,565 4,673 3,117 31% (33)%
93 45 314 (52)% 598%
3,658 4,718 3,431 29% @N%
426 236 713 (45)% 202%
1,124 1,311 1,331 17% 2%
1,550 1,547 2,044 0% 32%
2,108 3,171 1,387 50% (56)%
502 755 346 50% (54)%
$1,606 $2,416 $1,041 50% G%
2022 2.4 2023 1.0
2022 2023
1.7 627
477 724
409 269
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1,728 1,586 1,382 )% (13)%
300 253 446 16)% 76%
61 32 48 (48)% 50%
364 247 148 (32)% (40)%
725 532 642 Q7% 21%
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66 15 13
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37,001 35,455 29,869 @)% (16)%
$116,283  $117,887  $120,149 1% 2%
« 37 37 37
« 68 69 69
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2021 2022 2023
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2,604 3,020 2,998 16% W%
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1,273 944 836 (26)% QA1)%
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0.29% 0.22% 0.54%
0.90% 0.72% 0.89%
$10,035 $9,012 $12,425
)
0.27% 0.43% 0.61%
0.20% 0.26% 0.40%
120
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ASU
2016-13 292 - -
(287) (237) (535)
57 58 63
426 236 713
$1,215 $1,272 $1,513
2020
2021 31 2022 31 2023 31
37 2 24
31
2021 2022 2023
1.47% 1.49% 1.62%
2021 31 2022 31 2023 31
37 2 24
2022 31 1.3 2023 31
1.5 2022 1.49 2023
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18 15 14 13 13 33 106
18 1 - - - - 19
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2023 5.0 12.2
9.1
™S 5.0
2023 31
TFS
TFS
TFS T™MCC TFS
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TFS
TMCC
2023 31
2022 31 2023 31

$16,896 $16,876 0.43% $16,946 $16,737 5.01%
MTN 46,387 46,235 1.55% 45,727 45,576 3.11%
EMTN 13,891 13,813 1.54% 12,104 12,022 2.10%
5,368 5,364 1.28% 4,616 4,614 5.08%
82,542 82,288 1.30% 79,393 78,949 3.48%
26,907 26,864 1.01% 32,777 32,736 3.76%
$109,449 $109,152 1.23% $112,170 $111,685 3.56%
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MTN EMTN
)
2022 31 $16,896 $46,387 $13,891 $5,368 $82,542
50 14,850 3,183 1,149 19,232
- (15,510)  (4,932) (1,901) (22,343)
- - (38) - (38)
2023 31 $16,946 $45,727 $12,104 $4,616 $79,393
2023 30 $3,173 s $- $28 $3,201
2023
16.5 18.1 17.4
WV
SEC SEC
2024
TMCC
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EMTN
TNCC
EMTN EMTN
EMTN 2022 EMTN
EMTN 60.0
EMTN EMTN
EMTN
EMTN
TNCC
2022 31 $26,907
19,732
(13,862)
2023 31 $32,777

2023 30 $1,140
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TMCC

TMCC

50

2024 12
SEC

2022 31 2023 31
SEC
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364
TMCC 100 TCPR
5.0 364 5.0
5.0
2024 31 2024 2026 31
2026 2028 31 2028
2022 31 2023 31
2024
364
8.0
2022 31 2023 31 3.2
5.5
T™MCC 2023 31 TMCC
4.6 2.3 2024 180
2025 31 2.1 2026
2022 31 2023 31
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TMCC ™S
2022
TFS
TFS
TFS
TFS

2026 5.0

31 2023 31
TMCC
TFS
100
10
2023 31

( )TFS

()
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1
2
TFS TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

TFS

30

TFS TFS
TFS

TFS

100
100,000

TMCC
TMCC

TMCC TFS

TMCC TMCC

TMCC

TFS

TFS
TMCC
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TFS
TFS
T™CC
TFS
TFS
T™CC
T™MCC TFS



TCPR TFS TMCC
TFS
TCPR TFS
TFS
LIBOR
2021 12 31 LIBOR
2023 30 LIBOR
LIBOR

TCPR

LIBOR

2021 12 31

LIBOR

ARR
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TFS
TCPR

2023 30

ARR
LIBOR

ARR
ARR

SOFR

ARR

US GAAP
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2023
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FICO

FICO
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10 2023 31
143
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ALCO

100

ALCO
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12
100
2022 31 2023 31 100bp
100bp 100bp

2022 31 $56.1 $(38.4)
2023 31 $(1.8) $2.8

100bp 2022

31 2023 31

LIBOR SOFR

93/324



2023

2023

31

31

1SDA
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2022 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$538 $509 $509 $- $- $- $-
26 23 - 4 8 1 10
9 10 3 1 - -
598 568 - 7 150 310 101
119 116 65 16 16 - 19
82 78 17 11 22 22 6
$1,372 $1,304 $594 $44 $197 $333 $136
$2,713 $1,462 $218 $154 $819 $60
$4,017 $2,056 $262 $351 $1,152 $196

2023 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$796 $744 $744 $- $- $- $-
14 12 - - 4 3 5
8 8 3 4 1 - -
487 430 - 3 127 249 51
152 140 109 8 17 - 6
127 120 40 21 23 29 7
$1,584 $1,454 $896 $36 $172 $281 $69
$2,712 $242 $471 $1,175 $815 $9
$4,166 $1,138 $507 $1,347 $1,096 $78
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VaR
30 99
VaR
2023 31
$112
$65
$124
TFS
TMCC 12
TMCC 60,000,000,000
TMCC
2022 16

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)
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TMcC 60,000,000,000
T™MCC TMCC

2021 17

(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch)
L-2453 2-4
(2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg)

(Vertigo Building - Polaris)

T™MCC 2022
TMCC  TMCC TCPR 2023
5.0 364 2022 11
TMCC TCPR 2024 2026 2028
5.0 364 5.0
5.0

T™MCC
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2022

TMNA
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100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500

50,000,000 915,000,000

1996 5,000 91,500 70 900 1,282 6,470

%

75024-5965
2-5 91,500 100
6565
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TMCC T™MCC 2016 31 2017 31
2018 31 2020 31 2020
2022 2019 31
TMcC TFSIC 10
2020 2021
TFSIC 700 2023 TFSIC 2.5
TMCC
TMcC
TMCC
TMCC

T™MCC

100/324



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TMCC
2024

2023

2023 91
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TMCC
)
1961 1990 T™S 2007 10 2013
T™S
2012
2013
2013 2016
2013
2017 12
2016 2017 12
2016 2017
TFS 2016
TFS 2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2020
TMNA 2021 10 TFSB
2016 TMCC 2016
2018 TMCC
2018 TMCC
1970 10 2003 TMCC 2012 2014
2014 2015 ™S
2015 2017 12
2017 12
2019
TMCC
2019 2019 TMCC
2019 TFSIC
2017 12 2022
2019 TMCC
2019 TMCC
2022 TMCC
1971 30 1993 2007
2012 12
2013 2015 12
2016 2019
TFS
2019 TMCC
2022 TFSIC
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1961 12 28 1986 SMBC
SMBC 2012 2014
2014 2015
2015 2017
2017 2018
2018 2021
SMBC 2021
TFS
TFSIC
2021 T™CC
1959 10 29 1984 2012 2015
2015 2017
2015 2018
2017 2019
2017 2020 TMNA
2018 2019
2019 2019
2019
2020
2019 2020 12
2020 2023
2023
2020
T™MCC TMNA
1967 1992 T™S TMNA T™S 2007
2012
2012 2014 11
2014 12 2017
2017 2020
2020 2022
2022
T™MCC TMNA ™S
1966 1990 T™S 2013 12 2015 T™S
2015 2018 12 T™S
2018 12
2022 TMCC
2022 TMCC
2022 TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
43
)
1961
1971 30
1970 10
1966
1969 11 30 1993 T™S 2012
2013 TFSB
- 2013 2017
TMCC
2017
2019 TMCC
2019 TMCC
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1964 12 28 1999 ™S 2017
2019 11 TMNA
2019
2019 11 TMCC
2019 2020 TMCC
2019 2020
TFSIC 2019
11 2020 TMNA
2020 2022 TMCC
2022 2022 10
TMCC
2020 TFSIC
2021 10 TFSB
2022 10 TMCC
1960 22 2005 TMCC 2005
2015 TMCC
2015
2020 TPG
Global LLC
2020 2021
TMCC
2021 TMCC

TMCC
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1A
IT
ARA
TMCC
1A 1A

1A

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC

11 21
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OooooOodd
1A
TMCC 1A
31
2022 2023
$11,783 $12,275
403 263
395 247
$12,581 $12,785
10-K
10-Q
1983 THCC
SEC
TMCC
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TMCC

TMCC

2023

2023

11,140,043
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31

T™MCC TMCC
2022 2023

2023
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2015 T™S ™S
2015 2015
T™MS
™S
2015 TMCC  TCPR
T™S
T™MS
120 60
60
50
™S ™S
62
55
T™MS
65 T™S
25
T™MS T™MS
TMCC TMNA
TMNA
TMNA
2015 T™S

TMNA
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a
TMNA
TMNA 60
2015 T™S
2015
T™MS
™S
T™S
TMNA
TMNA

TMNA

ERSP
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59.5
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0000000
2015 ™S SERP 2015
SERP
SERP TMCC
SERP SERP 62
SERP a SERP
b SERP 25
30
c TMS
100
SERP
X SERP 55
™S TMNA
™S y ™S
TMNA SERP
™S TMS DCP SERP
TMCC TMS
TMNA
2017 TMS DCP
T™MCC TMS DCP
2016 TMNA TMNA DCP
TMNA DCP TMNA DCP
TMNA
100 TMNA
50
TMS
TMS TMS SERP
22
TMNA DCP

TMNA DCP
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TMNA DCP

PULTIP

TIRP

TMNA DCP

2016
TMCC

TMNA DCP

T™S
TMCC
PULTIP
2016
2020 10
TIRP
TIRP
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TMNA

PULTIP
TMNA
TMNA

12 31

TIRP



23

38

103

134

59

193

2022

2023

2023

SEC

31
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10-K

131

oOoOooodn

2023 31

TMCC 1934

SEC
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ooooOoog
31
2021 2022 2023

$ 8,481 | 1,188,867 |$ 8,337 | 1,168,681 |$ 7,063 990,091
2,905 407,223 3,254 456,146 3,737 523,853

413 57,894 329 46,119 493 69,109
11,799 | 1,653,984 11,920 [ 1,670,946 11,293 | 1,583,053
5,932 831,548 5,846 819,492 5,122 718,002
2,302 322,694 1,401 196,392 3,054 428,110
3,565 499,742 4,673 655,061 3,117 436,941

956 134,012 1,015 142,283 1,053 147,610

410 57,474 (26) (3,645) 97 13,597

4,931 691,228 5,662 793,699 4,267 598,148

426 59,717 236 33,082 713 99,948

1,487 208,448 1,697 237,885 1,776 248,960

369 51,726 405 56,773 470 65,885

2,282 319,891 2,338 327,741 2,959 414,793
2,649 371,337 3,324 465,958 1,308 183,355

632 88,594 789 110,602 329 46,119

$ 2,017 282,743 [$ 2,535 355,356 [$ 979 137,236
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31
2021 2022 2023
$ 2,017 | 282,743 |$ 2,535 | 355,356 979 | 137,236
2021 ()
(280) 9 1,262 e8)|  (3,925) @l 6.187)
2022 1,121
2023 10 1,402
2021 701 ae)| (2,243 6N (140) 1 140
2022
2023
D (981) )| ,085) 36| (5,046)
$ 2,010 | 281,762 | $ 2,506 | 351,291 943 | 132,190
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2022 31 2023 31
$ 7,670 1,075,181 | $ 6,398 896,872
2,065 289,472 2,090 292,976
4,953 694,312 5,037 706,087
2022 31 1,246
174,664 82,432 11,555,318 90,280 12,655,450
2023 31 1,489
208,728
35,455 4,970,082 29,869 4,187,036
2,466 345,684 3,921 549,646
$ 135,041 18,930,047 [ $ 137,595 19,288,067
$ 109,152 15,300,927 | $ 111,685 15,656,003
1,564 219,242 3,727 522,451
6,224 872,480 5,674 795,381
116,940 16,392,649 121,086 16,973,835
2022 2023 31
100,000 915 128,265 915 128,265
91,500
2 280 2 280
1) (2,944) 67 (7,990)
17,205 2,411,797 15,649 2,193,677
18,101 2,537,398 16,509 2,314,232
$ 135,041 18,930,047 [ $ 137,595 19,288,067
2022 31 2023 31
$ 20,932 2,934,248 | $ 28,764 4,032,138
11,886 1,666,179 11,063 1,550,811
66 9,252 108 15,139
$ 32,884 4,609,679 | $ 39,935 5,598,088
$ 26,864 3,765,796 | $ 32,736 4,588,932
10 1,402 51 7,149
$ 26,874 3,767,197 | $ 32,787 4,596,082

117/324
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2020 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s 15 [$ 13,571 | $ 14,503
ASU 2016-13 . . . (218) (218)
— — — 2,017 2,017
— — ) — )
— — — (700) (700)
2021 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 8 (s 14,670 | $ 15,595
— — — 2,535 2,535
— — (29) — (29)
2022 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ @Dl 17,205 | $ 18,101
— — — 979 979
— — (36) — (36)
— — — (2,535) (2,535)
2023 31 $ 915 | $ 2| % G| $ 15,649 | $ 16,509
2020 31 128,265 280 2,103 1,902,383 2,033,031
ASU 2016-13 — — — (30,559) (30,559)
— — — 282,743 282,743
— — (981) — (981)
— — — (98,126) (98,126)
2021 31 128,265 280 1,121 2,056,441 2,186,107
— — — 355,356 355,356
— — (4,065) — (4,065)
2022 31 128,265 280 (2,944) 2,411,797 2,537,398
— — — 137,236 137,236
— — (5,046) — (5,046)
— — — (355,356) (355,356)
2023 31 128,265 280 (7,990)[ 2,193,677 2,314,232
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31
2021 2022 2023

$ 2,017 282,743 |$ 2,535 355,356 |$ 979 137,236

6,049 847,949 5,963 835,893 5,205 729,637

(2,496)| (349,889)|  (2.396)| (335.871)| (1,797)|  (251,903)

426 59,717 236 33,082 713 99,948

789 110,602 1,019 142,843 1,029 144,245

1,401 196,392 (230) (32,241) 206 28,877

149)[  (20,887) 181 25,373 375 52,568

®) (421) ©) (981) 10 1,402

142 19,906 (465) 65,184)|  (1,040)|  (145,787)

(2,521)| (353,394)|  (1.288)|  (180,552) 2,173 304,611

(44) (6,168) 24 3,364 () (1,121)

632 88,594 652 91,397 (505) (70,791)

6,243 875,144 6,224 872,480 7,340 [ 1,028,921

(2,215)|  (310,499)|  (2,468)| (345,964)|  (2.467)| (345,824)

422 59,156 1,769 247,978 1,902 266,622
932 130,648 338 47,381 59 8,271
(38,702)| (5,425,246)| (41,057)| (5,755,370)| (40,932)| (5,737,848)
28,009 | 3,926,302 34,335 | 4,813,080 34,018 | 4,768,643
4,793 671,883 3,339 468,061 (1,812)|  (254,006)

(16,778)| (2,351,940)| (15,064)| (2,111,672)|  (9.617)| (1,348,111)

11,821 | 1,657,068 12,510 | 1,753,652 11,001 | 1,542,120
(200)|  (28,036) (200) (28,036) (760)|  (106,537)
506 70,931 300 42,054 340 47,661
— — (26) (3.645) (36) (5,046)
a9l  @1,079) 1) (9,953) (83) (11,635)

(11,491)| (1,610,808)|  (6,295)|  (882,433)|  (8,387)| (1,175,690)

119/324



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodd

31
2021 2022 2023
50,281 | 7,048,391 37,266 | 5,223,948 38,797 | 5,438,563
(30,648)| (4,296,237)|  (38.156)| (5.348,708)|  (35,374)| (4,958,727)
(9,049)| (1,268,489) 555 77,800 ,088)| (152,516)
(3,000)|  (420,540) — — _ _
(13) (1,822) 11) (1,542) — —
(700) (98,126) — — (2,535)|  (355,356)
6,871 963,177 G46)|  (48,502) (200)|  (28,036)
1,623 227,512 @n|  (58,455) @241 (@74,804)
8,529 | 1,195,595 10,152 | 1,423,107 9,735 | 1,364,652
$ 10,152 | 1,423,107 |$ 9,735 | 1,364,652 |$ 8,488 | 1,189,848
$ 2,445 342,740 [$ 1,649 231,157 |$ 2,375 332,928
$ 2,463 345,263 [$ 1,797 251,903 |$ 62)|  (64,763)
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TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS ™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC

T™CC

100
T™MIS

™IS
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2023 31
21 13
2023 31 25
2021
2022 TMCC
2023
US GAAP
12
TMCC 100

VIE
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US GAAP

2021
326

218

2022
842

2022 FASB

ASU
2023
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ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13 ASU  2016-13
ASU 2016-13
ASU  2016-13
292
2020 190
ASU  2021-05

ASU

ASU 2022-02 326

ASU ASU 2016-13 326
ASU
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41

2023
770

2022

674

31
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2022 31
$ 538 $ — $ 9 3 509
26 — ®) 23
9 1 — 10
598 4 (34) 568
20 — — 20
11 — @ 10
88 1 ®) 86
82 — C)) 78
$ 1,372 $ 6 $ 74 $ 1,304
3,649
$ 4,953
2023 31
$ 796 $ 7 $ (59 $ 744
14 — 0} 12
8 1 @ 8
487 2 (59) 430
76 — ®) 73
10 — @ 9
66 — ®) 58
127 — @ 120
$ 1,584 $ 10 $ (140) $ 1,454
3,583
$ 5,037
250
90
2023 2022

1.1
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2023 31
12 12

$ 0 % ®) $ 304 $ (56) $ 394 $  (59)

— — 11 @ 1 @
— — 2 Q 2 o
46 ) 352 (57) 398 (59)
38 €)) 17 @ 55 (€))
_ — 8 [6h) 8 (€))
— — 57 ®) 57 ®)
47 (¢)) 59 (6) 106 ™

$ 221 % @ $ 810 $ (133) $ 1,031 $  (140)

2022 31 12

2023 2022 31
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31
2021 2022 2023
$ (41) $ an
$ 20 $ @ 3 (38)
$ 114 $ @s8) 3% (297)
$ 15 $ 22 $ (23)
2022
2023 31
$ 71 $ 69
323 305
10 495 473
416 347
279 260

$ 1,584 $ 1,454
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2023 2022 31
120
2022 31 2023 31

$ 73,152 $ 79,515

10,298 12,123

83,450 91,638

1,330 1,315

(1,102) (1,184)

(1,195) (1,430)

(1) (59)

(1,246) (1,489)

$ 82,432 $ 90,280

2022 2023 31 21.2 29.0

2023 2022 31

284 214
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2022 31
2017
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2 $32,382  $21,917  $9,624  $4,774  $2,674 $ 718  $ 72,089
30 59 275 304 153 101 63 36 932
60 89 68 82 40 25 16 11 242
90 33 39 17 13 8 7 117
$ 32,758 $ 22,342  $9.834  $4,913  $2.761 $ 772 $ 73,380
2023 31
2018
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2 $32,377 $22,585 $14,278 $ 5,55 $ 2,178 $ 846  $ 77,819
30 59 306 439 285 125 71 a4 1,270
60 89 90 135 82 35 21 15 378
90 47 63 33 16 9 11 179
$ 32,820 | $ 23,222 $14.678 $ 5731 $ 2.279 $ 916  $ 79,646
2023 2022 31 235
192 120
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2022 31
2017

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 2,927 $ 2,927
— — — — — — 16 16
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 2,943 $ 2,943
$ 1,614 $ 1,245 $ 264 $ 384 $ 260 $ 1,245 s — $ 5,012
2 — — — — 5 — 7
$ 1,616 $ 1,245 $ 264 $ 384 $ 260 $ 1,250 s — $ 5,019

$ 662 $ 321 $ 209 $ 158 $ 37 $ 173 $ 774 $ 2,334

663 $ 322 $ 209 $ 158 $ 37 $ 173 $ 774 $ 2,336

2,279 $ 1,567 $ 473 $ 542 $ 297 $ 1,423 $ 3,717 $ 10,298
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2023 31
2018

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
$ - $ - $ - $ — $ — $ — 3% 3,859 $ 3,859
— — — — — — 54 54
— — — — — — 51 51
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 3,964 $ 3,964
$ 1,378 $ 1,024 $ 1,067 $ 133 $ 300 $ 80 $ 209 $ 4,951
5 — 2 — — — — 7
8 7 — — — 2 — 17
$ 1,391  $ 1,031 $ 1,069 $ 133 $ 300 $ 82 $ 209 $ 4,975
$ 789 $ 317 $ 18 $ 131 $ 124 $ 8 $ 1,552 $ 3,183
— 1 — — — — — 1
$ 789 $ 318 $ 18 $ 131 $ 124 $ 8  $ 1,552 $ 3,184
$ 2,180 $ 1,349 $ 1,241 $ 264 $ 424 $ 940 $ 5,725 $ 12,123

2023 2022 31 49

2023 2022 31

120

30
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2022 31

90

30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 932 % 242 $ 117 $ 1,291 $ 72,089 $ 73,380 $ 65

— — — — 2,943 2,943 —
— — —_ —_ 5,019 5,019 —
— — — — 2,336 2,336 —

$ 932 % 242 $ 117 $ 1,291 $ 82,387 $83,678 $ 65

2023 31

90

30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 1,270 % 3718 % 179 $ 1,827 $ 77,819 $ 79,646 % 111

— — — — 3,964 3,964 —
— — — — 4,975 4,975 —
_ _ — — 3,184 3,184 —

$ 1,270 % 3718 $ 179 $ 1,827 $ 89,942 $91,769 $ 111

2023 2022

2023 2022
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2023 2022

2021 ASU 2016-13
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TMCC

120

FICO

FICO
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120
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2021
2022 31
)
2022
2023 31
)
2023 31
TMNA
199
TMNA
12

2022 31
$ 1,075 $ 140 $ 1,215
(237) — (237)
58 — 58
299 (63) 236
$ 1,195 $ 77 $ 1,272
26
2023 31
$ 1,195 $ 77 $ 1,272
(535) — (535)
63 — 63
707 6 713
$ 1,430 $ 83 $ 1,513
24
1.0
2022 31
TMNA 929

187
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2023 2022 31
2022 31 2023 31
$ 45,682 $ 38,811
(1,272) (694)
(8,955) (8,248)
$ 35,455 $ 29,869
() 2022 2023 31 16.2 15.3
2023 31
31
2024 $ 4,755
2025 2,439
2026 821
2027 57
2028 5
$ 8,077
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orc
oTC

2023 31

0TC
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2022 31 2023
$ 64,327 1,425 56,799 $ 1,888
1,594 55 1,237 49
$ 65,921 1,480 58,036 $ 1,937
(761) (659)
(658) (1,227)
61 $ 51
$ 19,903 822 46,082 $ 468
8,102 717 6,447 1,002
$ 28,005 1,539 52,529 $ 1,470
(761) (659)
(753) (794)
25 $ 17
31 23
2023 2022 31 265 132
31
2021 2022 2023

$ 1,954 $ 1,498 $ 2,919

420 107 (569)

2,374 1,605 2,350

1,402 (438) (614)

(1,351) 818 805

(123) (584) 513

$ 2,302 $ 1,401 $ 3,054
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2026
2027
2028

31
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16.9
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2022 31 2023 31
$ 82,542 $ 82,288 1.30 $ 79,393 $ 78,949 3.48
26,907 26,864 1.01 32,777 32,736 3.76
$ 109,449  $ 109,152 1.23 $ 112,170  $ 111,685 3.56
$ 49,501
22,224
16,694
8,293
8,307
7,151
(485)
$ 111,685

2049
2023 2022 31 16.7
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364
TMCC 100 TCPR
2024 2026 2028 5.0 364
5.0 5.0

2023 2022 31
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2024
364
8.0
2023 2022 31 5.5 3.2
TMCC 2023 31 TMCC
2024 2025 2026 2.3 180 2.1
4.6
2023 2022 31
TMCC ™S 2026
5.0 2023

2022 31
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VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
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VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE
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VIE

VIE

VIE

TMCC

1.

7

TMCC
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VIE
2022 31
VIE VIE
$ 1,284 $ 20,932 $ 51 $ 18,562 $ 8
645 11,886 15 8,302 2
$ 1,929 $ 32,818 $ 66 $ 26,864 $ 10
2023 31
VIE VIE
$ 1,434 $ 28,764 $ 85 $ 25,155 $ 41
656 11,063 23 7,581 10
$ 2,090 $ 39,827 $ 108 $ 32,736 $ 51
VIE TMCC TMCC
VIE 2023 31
TMCC
VIE
VIE
VIE
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TMcC
T™MCC
TMNA
TDIG
TMNA
VIE
2023 2022 31
TDIG 2023 2022

2021

2022 31 2023 31
$ 3,289 $ 3,153
119 106
3,408 3,259
100 100
$ 3,508 $ 3,359

TMCC
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12
2023 32 2022
32 2021 36
2032 TMNA
2023 2022 31 76 84
TMCC
2023 31
31

2024 $ 18
2025 15
2026 14
2027 13
2028 13
33
$ 106

an
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ROU
T™MCC
31
10
2022
31

2023

TMCC

2031

31

2022

10

TMCC

31

TMCC
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31

oOoOooodn

ROU
2023
100
2028 20 2029
2032 10 T™MCC
T™MCC
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83
7.6
2.86

2030

2023

2023
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2020 11 24 CFPB
10
TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120

60
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2023 2022 2021
TMCC
30
66.67
100 25
2015
2023 2022 2021 TMCC
TMNA
55 10

2023 2022 2021 TMCC

11
TMCC TFSIC

TMcC TMCC TMcC TFSIC

T™MCC TMCC
TMNA  TFSIC TMcC T™MCC

TMCC
TMCC
TFSIC TMCC
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31
2021 2022 2023
$ 2,756 $ 1,774 $ (1,859
386 281 [€H)
11 22 16
3,153 2,077 (1,844)
(2,243) (1,166) 2,100
(276) (123) 78
@ 1 )
(2,521) (1,288) 2,173
$ 632 $ 789 $ 329
31
2021 2022 2023
21.0 21.0 21.0
3.9 3.7 4.2
— — 1.3
) (0.5) (1.0) (1.0)
(0.5) — (0-3)
23.9 23.7 25.2
2021 2022 2023

2022

2023

152/324
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31
2022 2023
$ 1,504 $ 4,786
348 403
275 356
24 —
82 72
$ 2,233 $ 5,617
14 1,007
394 478
179 197
— 150
45 23
23 20
14 17
669 1,892
— (2)
$ 669 $ 1,890
) $ 1,564 $ 3,727
2022 2023 31
16
2023 31 955
2022 31 2023 2022 31
37 13
2024
2023 31
11
2022 31
2023 2022 31

2032
2023 2022 31
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2023

2021

2023

2022

2022
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2017
2022 31 307 288
31 TMNA
28 52
2023 2022 31 TMCC
TMCC TFSIC TFSB
31
2021 2022 2023
$ 19 $ 15 $ 22
1 1 2
2 6 19
) - —
$ 15 $ 22 $ 43
2021 31 43 22 14
2023 2022 2021 31
2023
21
12
2023 2022
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2022
15 2022 12
31 2024
2023
2023 31 2018 2023 IRS
12

31
2021 2022 2023

$ 1,997 $ 1,746 $ 1,243

$ (113) $ (75) $ 106

$ 117 $ 99 $ 96

$ 173 $ 168 $ 156

$ 18 $ 3 $ 35

$ 91 $ 82 $ 107
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TMCC  TMNA

31

TMNA

TMNA

2023

TMCC TFS
TMCC

TCPR TMCC

TMNA

TMCC
TFS

TFS
TFS
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2022 31 2023 31
$ 100 $ 35
$ 90 $ 47
$ (875) $ (922)
$ (212) $ (250)
$ (923) $ (410)
$ 789 $ 1,237
$ 80 $ 89
$ 374 $ 399
$ 394 $ 432
$ 8 $ 8
2023 2022
79 66
2023 2022 31
TFSIC 2.5
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TFS
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TMCC TFS
2023 2022 31
8.4 8.5 ™S
2026 5.0 2023 2022
31 7.8 8.0
2023 2022 31
2023 TMcC ™S ™S 500
TMCC
TMcC
TMCC
TMCC TFSB TMCC TFSB
60
2023 2022 31 TMcC

TMcC

TMcC TMNA

T™MCC TMNA
TMcC
TMCC TFSB TFSB T™MCC TFSB

TMCC  TFSB TMCC TMCC TFSB
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TMCC TFSB TFS TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC T™MS TFS
TMCC TFSB 2021 TMCC TFSB
TMCC TCPR TMNA
TMCC  TMNA
2032
2029 2026
TMCC
TMNA
TMCC TMNA
10
TMCC TMNA
TMNA
TMCC
TMNA TMCC

TMNA
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TMNA
TMNA
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2023 2022 31 120
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2022 31

504 $ 5 % — % — 3 509
— 23 — — 23
— 10 — — 10
— 568 — — 568
— 20 — — 20
— 7 3 — 10
— 78 8 — 86
— 75 3 — 78
504 786 14 — 1,304
1,137
1,576 — — — 1,576
936 — — — 936
2,512 — — — 3,649
3,016 786 14 — 4,953
— 1,425 — — 1,425
— 55 — — 55

_ — - (1,419) (1,419)
— 1,480 — (1,419) 61
3,016 2,266 14 (1,419) 5,014

— (822) — — (822)

— 717) — — 717)
_ — — 1,514 1,514

— (1,539) — 1,514 (25)
3,06 $ 721 % 14 8 9% $ 4,989
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2023 31

$ 740 $ 4 $ — $ — $ 744
— 12 — — 12
— 8 — — 8
— 430 — — 430
— 73 — — 73
— 6 3 — 9
— 53 5 — 58
— 80 40 — 120
740 666 48 — 1,454
1,081
1,631 — — — 1,631
871 — — — 871
2,502 — — — 3,583
3,242 666 48 — 5,037
— 1,888 — — 1,888
— 49 — — 49

— — — (1,886) (1,886)
— 1,937 — (1,886) 51
3,242 2,603 48 (1,886) 5,088

— (468) — — (468)

— (1,002) — — (1,002)
— — — 1,453 1,453

— (1,470) — 1,453 an
$ 3,242 $ 1,133 $ 48 $ (433) $ 5,071

2023 2022 31

2023 2022 31
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2022 31
72,369  $ — % — $ 73,385 $ 73,385
2,940 — — 2,931 2,931
4,985 — — 4,961 4,961
2,256 — — 2,171 2,171
82,288 % — $ 80,980 $ — $ 80,980
26,864  $ — % — $ 26,500 $ 26,500
2023 31
78,445 $ — $ — $ 77,649 $ 77,649
3,972 — — 3,968 3,968
4,981 — — 4,990 4,990
3,113 — — 3,058 3,058
78,949 $ — $ 76,401 S — $ 76,401
32,736 — — 32,173 32,173

TMCC
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14

™IS

2021 31
$ 11,799 $ — $ — $ 11,799
5,932 — — 5,932
2,302 — — 2,302
3,565 — — 3,565
— 956 — 956
93 317 — 410
3,658 1,273 — 4,931
426 — — 426
1,124 363 — 1,487
— 369 — 369
1,550 732 — 2,282
2,108 541 — 2,649
502 130 — 632
$ 1,606 $ 411 $ — $ 2,017
$ 127,726 $ 6,149 $ (147) $ 133,728
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2022 31
$ 11,920 $ — $ — $ 11,920
5,846 — — 5,846
1,401 — — 1,401
4,673 — — 4,673
— 1,015 — 1,015
45 1) — (26)
4,718 944 — 5,662
236 — — 236
1,311 386 — 1,697
— 405 — 405
1,547 791 — 2,338
3,171 153 — 3,324
755 34 — 789
$ 2,416 $ 119 $ — $ 2,535
$ 128,684 $ 6,510 $ (153) $ 135,041
2023 31
$ 11,293 $ — $ — $ 11,293
5,122 — — 5,122
3,054 — — 3,054
3,117 — — 3,117
— 1,053 — 1,053
314 @17) — 97
3,431 836 — 4,267
713 — — 713
1,331 445 — 1,776
— 470 — 470
2,044 915 — 2,959
1,387 (79) — 1,308
346 an — 329
$ 1,041 $ (62) $ — $ 979
$ 131,093 $ 6,638 $ (136) $ 137,595
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120
2023 2022 31
83 82
2023 2022 31
2022 31 2021 31 2.7 2.5
2023 800
2022 704 2023 31
2.9
2024 827 2.1

2023 2022 31 ™IS
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{Dollars in mellions)
Years ended March 31,
W 2022 22l

Financing revenues:

Operating kease 5 763 & 8337 § B 48]

Reiail 3,737 3254 2 WS

Denler 493 320 413
Tolal financing revenucs 11,293 11,920 11,79

Dprecionion on operating leases - b 5540 5932

Imerest expense 3,054 1.401 2302
Net linancing revemes Al 4673 1,565
Yoluntiry profection contract revenues and

insuranse camed premiums 1083 1015 56
Tnwestment and other income (loss), nel a7 (26} 410
Mt financing revenmes and other nevenigs 267 5662 4,931
Expenses:

Proviston for credit losses TI3 20 426

Opermting and adminisirative 1,776 1.697 1487

Voluntary prolestion contract expenses aind insurmmnee hses 470 405 el
Tolal expenses 2,959 2338 2182
Income before income taxes 1,308 3324 2049
Provisken for income tixes 1 TRD 632
Nel income s 979§ 2535 8 2,07

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Dollars i mullions)
Years ended March 31,
023 2022 2021

el income ] 90 5 255 5 27

Chilier comprehensive income, tet of tax
Met unrealized (losses) gains an avaitable-for-sale

markerable securitics [net of tax benefin (provision)

oS 10, S5 and (32), respectively] (37 (%) 9
Reclassification adjusiment for net losses (gaims) on

available-for-sale marketable securities incloded

mvestment and other income, net [net of tx

provision of 0, S0 and S5, respectively] 1 i} (167
Crher comprehensive loss (36 (29} (7
Comprelensive incone 5 My 5 250 5 2000

Befer 1o the accompanying MNotes 1o Consoliduied Financial Ststements,
6
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Dollars in millions except share data)

March 31, March 31,
2023 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cosh equivalents 5 639 3 7670
Restricied cash and cash cquivalenis 2 (¥H) 2 S
Imvestments in marketahle sccurities 5087 41953
Fimsnce receivables, net of allowance for credit losses of S 1489 and 51,246,
respectively 00, 281 K2,432
Investments in oparaling leases, nel 20,305 15455
Orilier asscts 3921 2 A6
Total assers 5 137,595 5 135041
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER™S EQUITY
Dbt 5 1685 5 109,152
Deefigrred income tixes k frrr) 1,564
Cbier linbilities 5674 6,224
Total Liabilities 121,086 116,540
Commitments and contingencics | Refier 1o Mote 9)
Sharcholder™s equity:
Capital siock, no par vakheg { 100,000 shares suthorized; 91,500 lssued

and ounsmdingh s March 31, 2023 und 2022 9135 95
Aubditsemal pard-in capital 2z 2
Accumulnied other comprehensive loss (57 (213
Retmiiied cimidngs 15,649 17,2065
Tolal sharcholder's couity 163,505 18,101
Total Habilities and sharelolder's equity - 137505 % 135,041

The Following table presents the assets and habilities of our consolidated vanable interest entities (Refer 10 Mot 85,

March 31, Muarch 31,
2% 21232

ASSETS

Finumee receivables, net 5 b . 1 20,932
Investments in operaling leases, gl 11,063 11,386
Chher assets 108 50
Total psscs 5 n93s % 12 384
LIABILITIES

Dbt 5 2T OS 26,564
Chher liabilitics 51 1k
Total labikities 5 27T 5 1674

Refer o the accompanying Notes 1o Consalidated Financial Statements,
(]
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TOYOTAMOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATEDR STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

{Dollars in millions)
Accurmulal
ed
Additional other
comgrehen
Capilal paid-in sive Retained
income
slock copital {loss) canungs Total
Balance s March 31, 2020 5 a5 5 2 5 15 § 133571 §5 14503
Cumulative-eiMect of pdoption of ASL 2006-1% - - - (218) (218}
Nel incoine . . - 2007 2017
(hher comprehensive loss, net of tax - - (7 - (7}
Drividends - - - {00y (T0nb )
Balance a1 March 31, 2021 % LI . B %  J46T0 %5 15505
Nel income - - - 2535 2535
Oher comprehensive loss, net of 1ax - - (29 = (29}
Balance a1 March 31, 2022 % His 8 2 % 21y & 17308 8§ I81m
Mel income - - - T TS
Oiher comprehensive loss, net of fax - - (3] - (¥}
ividends % - - (2.535) {2,535)
Bilace i March 31, 2023 % [TER 2 % (57 & 15649 5 16,506

Befer 1o the accompanying Notes 1o Consoliduied Financial Statements,

iy
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Dollars i millions )
Years ended March 31
023 2022 o2
Cashi flows from oparaling aclivities:
Nl icome 5 w3 25 3 T
Addjustmenis b recongile net income 10 net cash provided by opemting
ctivities:
Diepreciation ansd amanization 5,205 5,903 6,040
Heecagrition of debormed mcomie and fiees (1797 (2,390 (2,490 )
Prevussion foa credin lisses T3 X3k A0
Amortization of defemed costs 1029 .ol TED
Foreign currency amd olher adjustments to the camying value of financial
instmments, net Ky (230 1401
Ml losses (gams) from mvestments i marketahls secuntics 35 i8] (149
et change m:
Derivatsve dnscls 10 M {3y
Onber nssets amd scomed interest {1,040 ) 1468 ] |42
Dieferned income taxes 2073 (1288 [2.521)
Dxerwvatave lahn s 3] 4 (LTS
Onibrer linbabities (505 ) 1352 32
Mel cash praveded by operating activities T340 6,224 f, 243
Cash flows from investing aciivitics:
Tarchase of investments m markelable secunies (2467 [ 2k ] (.25)
Prooeeds Trom sabes of mvestnaents i marketable secuntics 1,m2 1,760 422
Peoceeds from matanties of investments in marketable secunitics ] 1ig L
Acqquisition of finnmce receivables {10,932 ) (41,057) {38,702 )
Callecon of finmce necenvables ER 1L 14,335 28, (KK
Mgt change m wholesale and certan workmg capatal recevables {1,812 3100 4, T3
Acquisition of nvestinents i operaiing leses (617 (15,4 ) (16,778
Disparsals of myvestments in operating lenses 11001 12510 11,821
Long term boams o allibintes (760 b [ 20HH ) 120K
Payinents o long herm loans from alliliales 30 k'L A0y
et change m lisancing suppoit provided 1o adliliaies 36} (2] -
(Mher, net (B3} {7l (M)
Nel cash useil in invistinig activitics (RINT (6,295 ] (L1491 )
Cash Mows Ffrom lmancing aclivites:
Paowcoeds from issuance of debi IR TN 7 2ot 50,251
Payments om debil (35374 (3% 156) {30,608 )
el change m commercinl paper and other shor-term financing {1L.OES ) 555 (1, )
Trayment on boun from affibnie - - (3, 00H0 )
Nl chaige m linancing support proviaded by aflilsies - [NIN] (133
Dividend paid (2.535) = { TN )
Mot carsh (used anp provaded by finascing sctivities (24H0 (M6 ] K71
Nel idecrense) incresse in cash and cash equavalents and restricted cash and cash
equivabents (1,247} (417 1,623
Cash and cosh equivalenis amd restricied cash oed cash equivalenis at the
bepinning of the period 8735 |01 152 K320
Cash and cash eqmivalenis amd nestricied cash oed cash equivalenis al the cnd of
the period 5 RARE % 2735 3 10,152
Supplemeninl disclosures:
Tmterest paid, net 5 2375 § 164% 8 2445
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Ioome s {recenved) pad, met 5 62y 5 1,797 5 1463

Refer 1o the accompanying MNotes 10 Consolidited Financial Siatements.
67
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)

Note 1 - Busis o P . I Sinifi ing Palics
MNatwre af Operations

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation (" TSOC™) is 8 wholly-swned subsidiany of Toyaia Financial Services Iniemational Corpamition
{"TFSIC™), a California corporation, which is a whollv-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services Corporation (“TFSC), 0
Japanese corporation. TFSC, in turmn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tovota Motor Corporation (“TMC™), o Japanese
corpomtion, TFSC mmages TMC's worldwide linancial services operations. References herein w the “Company ™, *we”, “owr™,
and “us” denote TMOC and its conselidsed subsidiaries. TMOC is markeied under the brands of Toyvoia Financial Services,
Lexus Financial Services, and Mawda Financial Services.,

We provide a variety of finance and volumary vehicle and pavment protection products and services to authorzed Tovou and
Lexus dealers or dealer groups, privaie label dealers or dealer groups, and, to a lesser exteni, other domesiic and impori franchise
dealers geolbectively referred to as “dealers”™) and their customers in the Linited Siates of America (the 1 5.7) and Puerio Rico.
Owr business is substantially dependent upon the sale of Tovola, Lexus, and private label vehicles.

Owrr products and services fall promuarily into the following cotegones:

- Finamce Chperafions - We acquire retail installment sales contracts from dealers in the U5, and Puerio Rico (“retail
contracls™ ) and leasing condracis accounted for as operating leases (“lease contmets™) from dealers in the ULS, We
collectively refer tooour retail and lease contracts as the “consunmser portfolio.” We also provide dealer financing,
including wholesale financmig, working capital loans, revolving lines of credit and real estale fmancing to dealers in
the LS. and Pucrio Rico. We collectively refer to our dealer financing porifiolio as the “dealer portfolio.”

. Fotumtary Profection (perations - Threugh Tovotn Motor Insurince Services, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, and its
insurance compairy subsidiznies (collectively referred 1o as “TMIS™), we provide marketing, underwriting, and claims
mlmnistration for volunury vebicle and payment protection products sold by dealers in the U5, Our voluniary vehicle
and paymen! prodectien products mclude vehicle service, guarameed anto protection, prepaid mainienance, cxcess wear
omed wse, fire and wheel protection, key replacement protection, and used vehicle limited wanmanty contructs {“voluntury
predection products”). TMIS also provides coverage and related administrative services 1o cerimin of our affiliates in
the LS

Owr finance operations are located in the U S, and Puerio Rico with eaming asseis principally sourced through Toyota, Lexus, and
privaie label dealers. As of March 31, 2023, approximately 21 percent of netail and lease contmcts were concentraled in
California, 13 percent in Texas, 7 percent in New York, and 5 percent in New Jersey, Our voluntary prolection aperutions are
located in the US. As of March 31, 2023, approciunaiely 25 percent of voluntiry profection comtracts were concentrated in
Califernia, 6 percent in New York, and 5 percent in Maryland, Ay material adverse changes to the cconomies or applicable laws
in these states could have an adverse effiect on our financial condition and resulis of operations.

[
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Mote | - Basis of Preseatation and Shenificant Accounting Policices (Continued)
ihther Matters

In fiscal 2021, we announced the restructuring of our customer service opertions (o better serve our eustomiers by relocatmg and
streamlming the customer service operation and imvesting i new technology, The restructuring is substantially complete, and our
field apertions now miclude three regional Experience Centers located in Chandler, Anzona (serving the West region), Plana,
Texas (serving the Central reghon) and Alpharetia, Georgia (serving the East region),

In Oscal 2022, TMCC muwnumecd., in furtherance of its privale label Moncial services matmtive for tied party swomotive and
mability companies, thal we entered into a nonbinding etter of intent with Gremt American Cuidoors Growp LLC, the parent
company of Bass Pro Shops, Cabela's and the White River Manine Groug (~Bass Pro Shops™) 1o provide private label financial
services for Bass Pro Shop's bouts, all-termain vehicle products, and other mobility producis. The Company began to provide
mventory mancing for Bass Pro Shops, s aflilues, and authored mdependent dealers in fiscal 2023, with additional private
label services, including consumer financing and voluntary proveenon products and services, o be added over time. Wi are
leveraging our existing processes and persennel 1o originate and service the new a5se1s, wd we expect to make cemain lechnology
invesmens w supporn the Bass Pro Shops program. We did not scquire any existing Bass Pro Shops assets or labilites purswan
1o the agreement, and we do nol expect Tnuch costs to be sigmificant.

6tk
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Notr 1 - Basis of P i ) Siemilfi \ iz Policics (Continued)
Hasis of Presendation and Principles of Consolidation

Our accounting and financial reporting policies conlorm to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Amenica (U5, GAAP"). Certain prior peniod amounts hivee boen reclassified to conform 1o current penod presentiation.  Related
party iransactions presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed in Node 12 - Beloted Pany Transictions.

The consolidated fimancial statements inchede the accounits of TMEC, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and all variable interest
cntities (VIE™) of whicl we are the pomary beneficiary. Al intercompany transactions and balances have been climinaed,

User af Extimies

The preparnstion of fiascial statements in conformity with US. GAAP requires management 10 make estimates and assumptions
that alfect the reported amounts of assets and labalnies und the disclosure of contimgent psscts and labilities at the date of the
fnancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reperting pericd. Because of inheram
wcerainty mvalved in making estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates and assunpions, The scooumting
cstimates thivl are most importa 16 our busingss are the accumalsed deprecution related 1o our investments in operaling leascs
and the allowange for credit losses.

Nignificant Acormwmting Policies
Our significant accouiting policics are found ke respective Bote for which the policy 1= applicable.

Recemtly Adopted Aceonmting Guidanee

In [scal 2021, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (*ASU™) 2006-123, Finamcda! bsiruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326);
Measurenrent of Crodit Losses an Fivaoctad fosfroments (ASU 2006-1327), along with the subsequently isswed guidance amending
and elarifying various aspects of ASL 2016-13, using the modified retrospective method os required. In sccordance wilh tnt
method, the comparmtive peniod s mformution comlinues to be reponied under the relevan accounting guidanee in effect for that
period. Upon adoption of ASU 2006- 13, the mourred loss impainmemt method was replaced with a sew impaimsent model that
reflects lifetime expocted losses for our finance recsivables. The adoption of ASU 2006-12 resulted in a cumulative-cffect
adjustment to decrense opening retained comiings by approximately $218 i llson, et of txes, resulting from o prelax increase o
our allowanes for eredil losses on finance reccivables of approximately 5292 million. Additioually, we have changed the
presentation of secroed interest related o finance receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets from Finonee receivables, net (o
Other assets. As of April 1, 20240, we lave reclussafied accrued interest of 5190 million froan Finamce receivables, ned 1o Other
assets. The sdoplion of this new puidance did not result in a material mpact 1o owr avinlable-for-gale debt securities portfolio.

On Apnl 1, 2022, we adopled ASU 202105, Lessors-Cortain Leases with Vardable Loase Paymems (Topic 8425, which requires a
lessor 1o clossify and account lor o lease with variable lease paymems that do not depend on o relerence index or re as an
operating lease il certnin erteria are met. The adeption of this guidance did not have o material impact on our consalidaied
framcial statements and relmed disclosures.

Avcownting Cusdarce faued Bur Mot Yer Adopted

I Mureh 2022, the FASE issued ASU 2022-02, Croair Losses (Tapic 32600 Troublod Dol Restrncturings and Vintage Diselosames,
which eliminates the accountimg guidance for Troubled Debt Restructurings by creditors that have adopted ASU 2016-13,
Fimnetad fostrnamonts — Credit Livses (lapie 3260 Measuremon! af Croait Losxes an Fianciol nstearents, while enhancing
disglosune requirements for certain boan refimmncing and restrusturiegs made 1o borrowers experiencing Mmancinl difficulty,
Addivionally, the ASU adds e requirement 1o diselose current petied gross wrile-alTs by vear of originmtion lor inancing
regeivables, This ASL s effective for us on April 1, 2023, The adoption of this gukdance will net fave o nuitenial inspact on our
consolidated Mancial starements and relmed disclosures,

0
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i mallions)

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketahle Sceuritics
Casdr amd cash equivilents

Cash und cash equivalents represent highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or bess from the date of acquisition
and may include money markel instruments, commercial paper, certificales of deposit, U5, government and agency obligations, or
similar imstmiments

Reseelcred cash and cosh equdvalenns

Resiricied cash and cash cquivalents include customer collections on secunitized receivables 1o be distributed 1o investors as
pavenents on the relnted secured notes and loans payable, which are primarily relmed to securitization trusts, Restricted cash
equivalents may also contain procecds from certaim debt issuances for which the use of the cash is restricted.

Trvestments in marketable secirities
Investmenis in markelable securitics consist of debt securifics and equily mmvestments,

We classily all of our debl securilies as available-Tor-sale (“AFS™), Excepd when the fir value option is elecied, AFS debt
securitics are recorded at fir value with unrealized gains or kesses included in sccumulated other comprehensive income
(*AOCT™), net of applicable 1axes. Intercst income is recognized on an nccmial basis and determined using the effective inferest
method. Realized gains and losses from sales of AFS debt secunities are determined using the specific identification method or
first im first oot method. Dividend income, mterest income, and realized gains and losses from the sales of AFS debl secunties are
inchided in Investiment and ather {kss) moome, net in onr Consolidated Seatements of Income.

We elacted the Bair value option for certain debs securities held within one of our affiliate investment porifolsss for opertiona] ease
iven the siee ad composition of this portfolio. All debt securities within this specific ponifolio are recorded at fair value with
changes in [ir value included in Investment and other (loss) inoome, net in our Consolidated Statements of Income. AFS debt
securitics for which the [uir value option is elected are not subject 1o credit loss impairment. As of March 31, 2023 and 2023, we
hedd AFS debt secunities for which the fair value option was clected of 53770 million and S674 mallion, respectively. The differcvce
between the agrregate fair value and the aggrepate wipaid principal balance of AFS debt secunities for which the fair valse option
wits clecled was an unrealized loss of 57 mallion and 541 million as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

All equity investments are recorded at Fair value with clanges in fair value included in Investment and other (loss) income, nel in
our Consolidated Sunements of Income. Realized gains and losses from sales of cquity investmens are determined using the first
in first oul method and are inchuded in Investmend and other (loss) income, vet in our Consolidated Stmements of Incomse.

|
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars i millions)
Mote 2 - Cash and Cash E'ﬂ"']ﬂ:.!} wndd Ivestmenis "m AMarketable ml“jlin i mﬁn tat 1]

Investments in markeiable securitics consisted of the followmg:

March 31, 2023
Amortizcd Unrealized Unrealized Fair
ol s losses valug
Awvnilable-for-sale debi secunties:
LLS. govemmient and ageney obligntions £ 706 8 7 8 (54 8§ 744
Foreign govermment mwd agency obligations 14 . {2) 12
Municipal del seouritics E] 1 iy 8
Coarporale debi securitics 487 2 {5%) 430
Mongage-backed sccuritics:
LS. govermmenl agency T . {3y 73
Moan-ngency residentinl ] - i1 ]
Mon=ngency conimercial By - (%) 58
Assel-backed scouritics 127 - {7} 1200
Talal avaikable-for-sale debl securities § 1,584 § 5 (1409 § 1,454
Eguity investmenis 1,583
Total investments in markeiable securitics 5 54087
March 31, 2022
Amartieed Unrealised Linrealiced Fair
cost mains losscs value
Avnilable-for-sale debrt seeuritiys:
LS. government and agency obligations 5 53 8 - 5 (29} § i
Foreign govermment and agency obligaions 6 - (3) 3
Municipal debd securitics 9 1 - 10
Corporate debt securitics 598 4 (34} 568
Morigape-backed secunties:
LLS. povermmeni agency . & - 20
Mon-agency residentaal 11 - (1 10
Mga-agency conumergial 88 1 i3] i
Asagi=backed seourliies B2 - i4) 74
Total available-for-sale debi securities § 1372 § i § (T4) § 1,30
Ecjuity investinents 3049
Tolal investments in metkeiable securitics 5 4,953

A portion of our equity invesiments are investments in funds that are privately placed and mannged by an open-cnd investment
management comgpany (the “Tnest™). Ifwe elect o redeem shares, the Trust will rormally redeem all shores for cash, but may, in
unmsial circumstances, redeem amounls excceding the lesser of 250 thousand or | percent of the Trust’s asset value by payment
in kind of securities held by the respective fund duning any S-day period.

We nlso invest i actively traded open-cod mutual funds. Redeniplions are subject to nomal terms und conditions us described in
ciach fund’s prospecius.

‘We had no non-cash investing setivitics related to in-kind redemption in fiscal 2023, Non-cash investing activities related to in-
kind rederniptions and subsequent purchases amounted 10 1.1 billion in fiscal 2022

12
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)
Mote 2 — Cash aml Cash E'n'mﬁlu wndd Ivestmenis "m AMarketable E“n‘lin i mﬁn peil

Unrealized Lossex ow Securiites

The following tible presents the aggregate fair value and unrealized losses on AFS debi securitics non contimsous unrealized loss
Positiom;

March 31, 2023
Li=s than 12 months 12 months o longer Total
Unrealused Unrealized Unrenlized
Svvailable-For-ale debl swountes: Faar value bnsses Fair valie lomsgs Fair value I
118, government and agency obligations 5 W % 8 4 % {56) % EiL (593
Foreign govemmesnl and agency obligations - - 1 2) 1 (2}
Mumicipal debg securitics - . 2 (i 2 ()
Corparale debt secunises Aty 2 352 {37} i} (59
Morigage-backad soouripes
L5, Govemnmeni agency EH {1 17 {2y 35 (3
Mon-agency residential - - i [y § ]
Monsagency commercial . . LT %) 51 (%)
Assel-hacked sevurities 47 {1y 50 () [[L (7}
“Total svinilishle-for-suke debl sevurities 5 1 5 () 5 &0 5 (133 3 L0M 5 (140}

Thee aggregane unrealised bosses on AFS Jdeld seeuritics in o comtinuous unrealized 1oss position for iwelve mosubis or longer were
kil significant as of March 31, 2022,

An allowance for eredin losses ks csiablished when i is derermired thar @ credin Ioss has occurred. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022,
management determined thai credit losses did noi exist Tor sceurities in i unrealieed boss position. This analysis considered &
vanely of fctors including, but no limited 1o, performance indicatons of e 1ssuer, defilt rates, industry analyst repons, credit
ranings, and other relevani infonnation, which indscaied that coniraciual cash Nows are expecied 10 ocour

Fraatary angd Losses our Necnrinies

The follewing tible represenis gains and losses om our mwvestments in inarketable securities presented in our Consolidaied
Statemens of Income:

Years ended March 31,

2023 22 2021

Annilable-for-sale debi sceuritics:
Unrealized losses on securities for which the

fisir vitlug option was elected ! 5 (7 s (41}
Realized (fosses) gains on sales < {38y % 4y s 1]
Equiry invesimenis;
Unrealized {losses) gamns 3 297y S (158} S 14
Realized (bosges) goins on sales 3 23y § 2 % 15

1 Shamimg in fizcal 2002, we elected the Far value opilion for cerlain debi secumbies

73
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Natr 2 = Cash anil Cah Exquisal { Tay i Marketaliic Sceurifies (Continusd
Cemyiraciunl Mahiritics

The amortized cost and Fir vitlue by controctual maturities of availuble-for-sale debt securitics are sumnurized in the following
table. Actual maturities may differ from contrachual maturitics because certnin borrowers have the right to call or prepay certain
obligmions.

March 31, 2023

Aumortized cosl Fair value

Avitlable-for-sale debi securiics:

Dnse within | vear 5 ¥l 5 0

D after | year through 5 vears bk} 05

Dwee after 5 years through 10 years 495 473

Dhee afber 10 years 416 147

Mortgape-bucked and mel-backed securities ' 279 260
Tenal 5 1584 % 1,454

! Mortgage-backed and assel-hacked securities are shown sopartely from ather maturity groupimgs as these securitics have multiple matursty
it

74
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TOYOTAMOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)

Nate 3 ~Fi Heceivablcs. Net

Finance reccivables, net consists of retail loan and dealer producis portfolio seaments, and includes deferred onigination costs,
deferred income, and allowance for credit bosses, Finance receivables. net also inchsdes securitized retail receivables, which
represend reiail receivables that have been sold for legal purposes 1o securifization trusts but cominue 1o be included in our
consolidated financial statements, i discussed funher in Motg § — Vimable Interest Ewtities. Cush flows. from these securitized
redail receivables wre availuble only for the repayment of debit issoed by these imists and paher obligations ansing Mo the
securitization irmsaciions, They are mot available for payment of our other obligations or 1o satisfy claims of our eller credilors,

Finance receivables are classified as held-for-imvestment if the Company has the inieni and ability o hold the receivables for ihe
foresccable futwre or il maturity or payoedT. Asof March 31, 2025 and 2022, all finance receivables were classificd as held-foe-
investment.,

Revenucs associated with retail and dealer financing are recognized 1o approximate a constan cffective vield over the contract
lerm, Incremental direct fees and costs incumred in connection with the acquisition of retail contracts and dealer financing
recervibles, including mcentive and e participation paymenis made to dealers, are capitalized and amoriized 1o approxamaie a
constant effective yield over the term of the rebated coniracts. Paymenis received on subvention and other consumer incentives arc
defermed and recopnized 1o approximaie a constant effective vield over the term of the related contracts.

For both retail loan and dealer products portiolio sepmens, accrued imterest, deferred mcome, and deferred ongination cosis, if
any, are written ofT within Provision for credil losses af the earlier of when an account is deemied 1o be uncollectible or when an
account is greater than 120 days past due.

Finance receivables, net consisted of the following:

March 31, Mnrch 31,
2023 2023

Retail receivables ! 5 THEIS S 73,152

Dhealer linancing 12,123 10,298

91,638 83,450

Deferred ariginuion cosis 1,415 1,330
Deelerred incadne (1,084} (1,102}

Allowance for credit losses

Retail receivables 11.430) (1L195)
Dealer financing (50 (51
Total allowance for credin losses (1,480 (1246}

Finnnce receivables, net 5 0,250 $ 82,432

! Includes secumbized retnil recervables of $29.0 billkon and 521.2 billion os of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,
Acerued imterest related 1o finnnce receivables ore presented within Oiher assets on the Consolidated Balanee Sheet mwd was $254
mallion and S214 mallion at March 21, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

75
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Nate 3 —Fi Receivables. Net (Continucd)
Creddis (hwality Indicadors

We are exposed to credit risk on our finance receivables. Credsl risk is the risk of loss arising from the failure of customers or
dealers 1o meet the terms of their contrcts with us or otherwise fuil 1o perform as agresd.

Retai! Loven Portfolio Segment

Thie retail loan porifolio segnient consists of vae class of lnance receivables. While we use various credit quality metrics io
develop our allowance for credit bosses on the retnil loan portfiolio segment, we primarily wilize the aging of the individual
accounts to moniter the credit quality of these Mance receivables. Based on our experience, the payment staius of bormowers is
the strongest indicator of the credit quality of the underlying receivables. Payment status also impacts charge-ofTs.

Individual borrower accounts within the retuil loan porifolio sepmient are segregaled mbo aging calegories based on ihe number of
davs past due. The aging of finance receivables is updated momhly,

The following tibles present the amontized cost basis of our retail loan portfolio by origination fiscal vear by credit quality
indicator based on number of diys past due:

Ao Ut Dhasis by Chripination Discal Yaar o March 31, 3023

poiuk] J22 Ml HEN laa HHE sl Prace Nustal
Apng of fizancs
rFecwivalies:
Ciarrenl % 13377 L 3 21585 L 14,774 5 5555 %5 LI 5 Bad L3 TTHIR
M--59 dayw past g M 43 b 3] 12% 7l i 12M
-89 darys pasi due kL] [LL] ! L) 1 13 L)
W1 s vt greater past
i at 6l LAl L] o it i
Toiad 5 12EM % 333 % [T ] 571 % L1 5 [T BT
Amornirgd Lot Dkamis by Chriginoion Descal Yaar ai hlarch 31, 3002
A2 2] ] e IR 2017 sl Prace Tuial
Apmng ol fimasce
Fecwivables:
Cureenl % I13RY ¥ nmr L 0,674 F 174 % 1574 5 T8 % TIOED
M-59 Lays past dus 1 17} 15 1ol &3 6 L
-8V by past ihse i H2 £ 25 113 1} 2ar
Y dayn o greater past
i 33 39 17 13 L] T T
Toiad § R S PR hEH  § 91F 5 LT § P . TEAR)
SR———

The amortized cost of retndl loan porifolio excludes accrued inferest of 5235 million and 5192 million 01 March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The previous tables include coniracts greater than 120 days past due, which are recorded at the fair value of collaicral
less estimanted costs io sell, and contracis m bankruptey.
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Noge § = Finance Beceivithles, Nep (Continuod)
Denler Procucts Porifalio Scawment

The dealer products portfolio segmenm consists of three classes of finance receivables: wholesale, real estate, mmd working capital
{mcludes both working capital and revolving lines of credity. All boans outstanding for an individual dealer or dealer group, which
inclhudes afMiliated entities, are agprepated and evalusted collectively by dealer or dealer group. This reflects the imerconmectad
mature of financing provided to our individual dealer and dealer group customers, and their affilined emitics.

‘When assessing the credin quality of the fimance receivables within the dealer products portfolio segment, we segregmie the finonce
receivables account balances into four calegories representing distinet eredin quality indicators based on intermal risk assessments.
The imtermal risk assessments for all fmance receivables within te dealer products portfolio segment are updmed on a menthly
tasis,

The four eredil quality indecators ang:
= Performing = Account nad clussified as either Crodan Wancl, A Risk or Default:
. Credit Walch - Account desipnated for elevated attention:

* Al Risk = Accouni where ihere 15 an increased likelihood tha delaoli may exist based on qualiiative and quanthimive
farctors: and

- Default - Accouil is not currently mseeting contractunl ebligations or we have 1emporarily waived cerin contraciual
requireIne s

Thee Following tibies present the amornized cost basis of our dealer products portfolio by credin quality indicior basad on mternil
rick pssessments by origination fiscal vear:

Amwtial Cos) Hasis by Ouig Fisesd Year ui Mlarch 11, 2023
20 and
Mix o2 po 14} ] 201% Proe Hevalving lsams Toal

Wholisak

Peifeming § - % - % . | - % T 1 - 8 E L T W]

Credil Watch . - - - . . 54 1]

A Rk - . . . . . 5l 51

Tefanlt s =

Wholeaale wal § el - 3 L | = 3 + ¥ = 3 ived  § iG]
Feal oilsie

Performiing i 1376 % loa 3 L0FT [EL N | L B 0§ U B B Xl

Cradit Wanch L] . 1 . . . . 1

At Had ] 7 2 17

Dicfianli = % v = + # * *

Rial enlat tosal § 1) Lo % Ly % 13 s L £ 0§ N5 s
Warkang L spstal

Perfieming L] b I 1 HY s 15BN 4 [ ENE | 14 % LU | (155 T B 4]

Credit Waach . - . - - - - -

At sk - | . - - - - |

Defauli . . . . . . - .

Warking capaal unal § Lo M § [ 1§ [FL R M % L¥2 5 LA
Toiad § Lo § IR | L1 % Md 3 [ ] e L 114§ Inn
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Note 3 Fi Reecivables. Net {Contipuni
Assortisnd Cosi Thaiis Ty Oviginatiog Fiscal Veas-st March 31, 1033
T el
22 031 2010 0w 2018 Prion Revobving loas Toisd

Wholewale

[ — 5 - % - s - % - K - % - % 187 8w

Crednt Wasch B - - - - - 6 16

Al Ml a . - . . . F a

Ikefiamh - . . . - . -

Wholeale sl 5 R - 3 - % : I3 - 3 .3 e 3 aom
Heal entate

Performing % [EAE] 1 245 ] I & Asa 3 R ] i (e L] ] B % L0 1

i peidn Waadh ¥ & . i s L] a T

A Rk - - - . - . -

Dicfanll 3 - i i : - &

el extang socal §  1Ee % jMs % M4 % M4 M0 % L0 5 T
Wirlng Cagita]

Pesforming 5 T 1 VT I TR 3 155 8 7% T 4% M

Credin Wasch 1 [ - . - s < ]

ARk & H : ; ¥ : 3

Uchaus - . . . . . - .

Wiorking capital ol ¥ i3 3 a2 ] e 5 158 ¥ 3 5 173 ¥ L] § Pl ]
Tisiad & m 13 .47 i 73 % 2 [ gy % [ E] % 3 & [RET

The amonized cos1 of the dealer products ponfolio excludes accrusd interest of 549 mallion and 522 million at Misrch 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively. As of Marely 31, 2023 and 2022, the mmount of line-of-credit arrangemenis tat are converted 1o e boans in
cach reporting period was insignificant, respectively,
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Past Dwe Fimance Receivables by Class

Substantiaily all finance receivables do not mvolve recourse 1o the dealer in the event of customer defaull. Finance receivables
inchude contracts greater than 120 days past duc, which are recorded at the fair value of collateral less estimated costs to sell, and
contracts in bankmapicy. Contrcts for which vehicles have been repossessed are excluded. For all fmance receivables, we define
“past duc” as any payment, including principal and interest, that is af least 30 days pust the contraciual due date. For any customer
who 15 granted a payment extension under an extension program. the aging of the receivable is adjusted [or the number of days of

ihe extension granied.

The following tables presents the agmg of the smorsaed cost basis of our finance receivables by class:

Retail loan
Wholesale
Real estale
Working capim]
Total

Reail loan
‘Whalesale

Real estate
Working cagital
Total

March 31, 2023

00 Days or
greater
30 - 50 i} - KO 00 Davs or pasl dug
[avs Dharys Ereater Torl Past Total Finance and
past due past due pasl due due Current receivables acening
5 .17 8§ ITE 8 17 5 1,827 § 778D 8§ ThoE0 8 111
. . 9 Ui 1,964 .
z i - - 4975 4975 -
4 2 ol $ 3,054 1,184 -
5 1L.I70 § IR 5 17 5 1827 5 H9942 5§ 71,769 5 1
March 31, 2022
00 Draws or
A0 - 59 o) - B9 90 Dy or greater
D Days gredater Towal Past Total Finance past due and
pasd due  past dug past dug due Current reccivables aecming
- 932 § M2 5 nr s 1291 & 72049 5 T3 S k]
- - - - 2943 2943 -
- * g £ 5019 50149 =
_ = = - 2336 2,336 =
5 03 8 42 35 nT % 1201 § BRLIRT 35 3367 % (5]
%
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Note 3 - Finanee Receivihles, Mot (Continued)
Trowbled Debi Restracturing

A troubled debi restructuring occwrs when a finance receivable is modified through o concession o a bormower experiencing
financial difficuliv. A finance receivable modified under a iroubled debt restructuring is considered 1o be impaired. In addition,
irowbled debt restrecturings include lnance receivables for which il customer has Nled for bankruptcy protection, For such
fimance receivables, we no bonger hivve the ability to modify the lenms of the agreement without the approval of the bankruptey
court and the coun may mmpose ferm moedilickions thal we are obligated 1o acoepl

For accounts ned under bunknipley prolection, e amownl of [nance receivables modilied as @ iroubled deb restructuring during
frscil 20273 amd 2022 was wol significant for cach class of Nnance receivables. Troubled deiv restmicturings for acooums nol under
bankruptcy protection within the retail loan class of finance receivables are comprised exclusively of contract term extenssons that
reduce the monthly payment doe from the customer, For the three classes of finance receivables within the dealer producis
porifolio sepment, troubled deb restructurings mclude comtract temm extensions, inderest mie adjustments, waivers of foan
covemants, of any combination of the three. Troubled debi restrscturings of accoumts not under bankrupley protection did not
include forgiveness of principal or interest rate adjustments daning fiscal 2023 and 2022,

We consider inance recevables uinder bankmupley proteciion within the retail loan ¢lass to be troubled debit restruciunngs as of the
date we receive notice of o customer filimg for bankruptey protection, regardless of the ullimate outcome of the bankruptey
procecdings, The bankrupley courd imay impose modificatwons as por of the proceedings, inchuding imercst mte adjustments and
forgwveness of prncipal. For fiscal 2023 and 2022, the financin] impact of troubled debt restructurings related 1o fininse
receivables under bankrupley protection was nol sigiificant 1o our Consolidated Statements of Income abd Consolidated Balanee
Shegts.
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Note 4— All for Credit 1
Lipon adoption of ASL 200 6-13 in fscal X021, the incurred Ioss impamment method wis replaced with a new impaimnent model
that reflects lifetime expected losses. Management develops and documents the allowance for credit losses on finimce receivables
based on two portfolio scpments. The determination of portiolio segmenis is based prinarily on the qualitative consideration of
the natre of our business operations and the characieristics of the imderlying finance receivables, os follows:

- Reiuil Loan Porifolic Segmeni — The retail loan porifolio segment consists of reiail contracts soquired froan dealers in
the U5, and Pucrio Rice. Under a retnil contract, we are granted a secunty imerest in the underlying collateral which
consists primarily of Tovots, Lexus, and private [abel vehicles. Based on the common risk characteristics associafed
with the inance reccivables, the reiail loan portfolio scgment is considered a single class of finance neccivabile.

- Dealer Prodiects Portfolio Segriest - The dealer producis porifolio scement consists of wholesale financing, real
estate loans, working capital loans, and revolving lines of credit 1o dealers in the ULS, and Puerto Rico. Wholesale
Minancing is primarily collseralized by new or used vehicle inventory with the outstanding balance Muctuating based
om the level of invenory, Working capital loans and revelving lines of credit are gromted for working capital purposes
amdd are secured by dealership assets. Real esiate loans are colliferalized by the underying real estate, are underwrnitien
primurily on a loan-to-value basis and are typically for a fixed em. Based on the risk charcteristics associmted with
the underlying fnance receivables, the dealer products portfolio scgmem consists of three classces of fimnce
receivables: wholesale, working capital (inchedes both working capital and revolving lines ol credit), and real estate,

Manugement's estimate of lifetime expecied credin losses is based on an eviduntion of relevani information aboul past evenls,
cument conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affiect the fsure collectability of the finance reccivables.
Management's evaluation takes mvio considerntion the risks in the retail loan pontfolio and dealer products ponfolio, past loss
experience, delingquency trends, underwriting and collection practices, changes in portfolie composition, economic forecasts and
other relevant faciors,

Methodalogy Used to Develop the Alfowanee for Credit Losses

The allewance for credit bosses is measured on a collective hasis when loans have similar nsk characteristics. Loans thal do not
share similar risk chamcteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. We generally use a discoumted cash Mow approach for
determining allowance for credit losses for inamce receivables modified as o troubled debt restracturing that are granted with
imterest mie conoessions, and @ non-discounted cash Mow approach for other loans.

‘We measure expected losses of ull compoenents of linance receivables on an amomized cost basts, excluding accrued interest, and
mchuding off-balance-sheet lemding commitments that are nol ancoditionally cancellable by TMCC. Estimevted expecied credin
losses for off-balance-sheet lending commitments within our dealer products portfolio are incleded in Other labilitics on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We have clected to exclude scerued imterest from the measurement of expected credil losses as we
apply policics and procedurcs that result in the tmely write-ofTs of accraed mterest. Acorued interest is written off within
allewance for credil losses uf the carlier of when an account 5 deemed to be uncollectble or when an nccount is grester than 120
davs pasi due

Retail Lo Portfalio Segment

The level of credn nsk o our el Joan ponfolo segment s nfloeneed by vamons faciors such as econonic condinons, the used
wehicle market, credit quality, contract structure, and collection siralegies and practices. The allowance for credin losses is
measured on a collective basis when loans hive similar sk cluracierisncs such as loan-to-vilue mtio, book paymenl-lo-income
rateo, FICO score i onigination. collaeral type. contract term, and other relevan ficiors, We use sumistical models vo estimie
Tifetime expected credin losses ol owr retul loan portfelio segment by applying probability of defimli and Joss given defult 1o e
exposure o default on a loan level basis,

Probability of default madels arg developed from micmal risk scoring models which consider variables such as delinquency status,
historical defoult frequency, and other eredit qualiny indscators such os loan-to-value mtio, book pavment-lo-iscome ruo, FIOO
score il ongination, collateral type (new or used, Lexus, Tovot or privitie labsel), and comract tenm.
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Note 4— All for Credit 1 Continued)

Loss piven default models forecast the exient of lesses given that a default has occumred and considers variables such as collateral,
trends in recovernies, historical loss sevenity, and other contract strocture variables. Exposure a1 default represents the expected
outstanding principal balance, including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable.

The lifetime expected credit losses incorporate the probability-weighted forward-looking macrocconomic forecasis for baseline,
favorable, and adverse scenarios. The lean lifetime is regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable pericd. We use
macrocconomic forecasts from a thied party and update such forecasts quanerdy.

On an ongoing basis, we review our models, including macroeconomic foiors, the selection of mucroeconomic seennrios und their
weighting to ensure they reflect the risk of the porifolio.

If manugensent does not believe the models reflect lifetane expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment 15 made 1o reflect
management judgment regarding observable changes in recent or expected economic rends and conditions. porifislio composition,
and oaher relevant factors. While management uses the best mformation aviilable to make such evaluntions, future sdjustmeants 1o
ihe allowance for eredit losses may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions wsed in makiig the
eviluxhons

Dwaler Produets Portfolio Segmens

The level of credit risk w our dealer products pofifolio seginenl 15 infloiced primanly by the finncial stréigth of dealers within
our paoat folic, dealer concentration, collateral quality, and other economic fctors. The finnsial strength of dealers within our
portfolio is mfluenced by, ainong other fictors, genenil eoomoniic conditions, e overall demand for new il used vehicles and Lhe
fmEncial condition of mtomotive manuficiurers, The allowance for credit losses 15 established for both outstanding dealer Gnance
recervables and certain wifuinded off-balunce sheet lendin: commitments. The allowance for credit losses is measurad on a
collective basts when loans hive similar nisk charactenistics such as dealer group mitermal nsk rating and loa-o-value ratios. We
migasure lifetme expected credit bosses of our deaber products poritfolie sepment by applyving probability of defiult and loss given
defult to the exposure at defuult on o loan level basis. Probability of defoult is prinsanily estoblished based on imemal risk
assessmpents, The probability of defoull model alse considers qualitative fctors related 1o macroecoiomic sutlooks, Loss piven
defmult 15 established based on the namre and market value of the collateral, loan-to-value mtos and oter credit quality indicators,
Exposure il defoull represents the expecied outstanding prinerpal balance. The hfetime of (he loadi of lendinp coiminitgil 15
regarded by management as e reasonable and supportable period. On ap engoang basis, we review oaur models, iclading
inacroeconomic oullooks, 1o ensure tev rellect the risk af the postlalis.

If management does not believe the models reflect lietane expecied credit losses, a qualitaive adjustment is made 10 reflect
managemen| judgment regarding observable changes in recent or expecied economic rends and conditions, portfalio composiion,
and other relevant factors. While management uses ihe best information available o make such evaluntions, funire adjusiments o
the atlowance for credit losses muay be ecesaary i conditions differ substantially from e assumpions wed in making the
eviluations

Accounting for the Allewance for Credi Losses

Increases 1o the allowance for credin losses e accompanied by comesponding charges 1o e Provisson for credin lesses in ows
Consolidated Stmcmeits of lncome, The uncollectible portion of nance receivables is charged 1o the allowance For ¢redil bosses
al the carlser af when an account i3 deemed to be uncollecnble or when an account is greater than |20 days past duc. [ the gvent
wi Fepidsess the collateral, the recevable is clarged-ofl and we recond tie collateral a1 is catiiated Gar value less cosis wo sell and
repart i in Chiber asscrs on our Consolidated Bakinee Sheets. Recovenics of finonce receivables previously charged off as
uincalleciible are eredited 1o the allowanee for credit losses.
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Note 4 — Allowgnee for Credit Losses {Continucil)

The following ebles provade mlormateon related o our allowance for credil losses for finmmee receivables and certan off-balmee
sheet lendimg commitments by port folio segment:

Year ended March 31, 2023

Dealer
Retail boan products Toaal
Beginning balance, April 1, 2022 5 1195 % 7 5 1,272
Charge-oiTs (535) . (535}
Recoveries 63 - 63
Provision for credit losses TOT L4 713
Ending bafance, March 31, 20231 5 1430 S 3 5 1,513

I Ending balonce mchudes $24 pullion of ol swasce for aredit bosses reconded i Oxher lbelees on the Consalsdated Balonee Sheet which =

redated 1o ofl-halance sheet comnmiments m the dealer products partfobo

Year ended Muarch 31, 2022

Deler
Retail loan prodlucis Towal
Beginning balance, Aprl 1, 2021 5 1075 & 14 % 1.215
Charpe-olfs (237} - (2373
Recoverics 5B = 58
Provision for crodit losses 99 (63) 236
Ending balance, March 31, 20221 5 1195 & 78 1272

Fraleng halnnce includes $26 mallon of allvwance for credil losses reconded in Oither inhalifies on the Consolidated Ralonce Sheet which is
relabed tooff-balamee shoet commitments in e dealer products ponfislio,

Finunce receivubles for the dealer producis portfolio segment us of March 31, 2023 includes 51.0 billion in finance receivables that
are guarmoed by Tovotn Motor Nerth Amserica, Inc. (“TMNA™), and 3199 million in finance reccivibles thia are guzranieed by
ihird-pariy private Tovoin distnibadors. Finance receivables for the dealer producis porifolio segment as of March 31, 2022
includes 5929 million in fimance reccivables that are guamnteed by TMMNA, and 5187 million in finonce receivables that are
puaranieed by third-party private Toyota distributors. These finunce receivables pre related to certain Toyota and Lexus dealers
and sher third parties to whem we provided finaneing a1 the request of TMNA and third-party proivate Toyoma distributors.,
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Noiz S=1 in 0 . N
Investmsents in operating leases, net consists of vehicle lease comiracts acquired from dealers, and includes deferred origination foes
and costs, deferred income, and accumulated deprociation. Generally, lessees have the zhility 1o extend their lease erm in six
manth imcrements up o a tetal of 12 months from the original lease matunty date, A lease can be terminated at any time by

satislying the obligntions under the lease coniract. Early iermination programs may be occasionally offered 1o eligible lessoes. Al
the end of the lease, the customer has the option to buy the leased vehicle or return the vehicle 1o the dealer.

Secuntized myestments in operaiing leases represent bemeficial mieresis inoa pool of certun vehicle leases that have been sold for
legn! purposes 1o secunitization trusis bui continue o be included in our consolidated financial statemends as discussed further m
Iolg # - Voariable Interest Entitics. Cash Nows from these sccurilized investmenis in operting leases are availuble only for the
repayment of debit issued by these trusis and other obligations arising from the seourttization iransactions. They are not available
for payment of our other obligations or o smisly clidms of our other creditors,

Operating lease revennes are recognized on o straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 'We have made an accounting policy
clection to cxchide from the consideriion in the comtmact, and from varabde paymems not included i the consideration in the
contrict, sales and other taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific lease
revenue-producing transaction and collecied from customers. Deferred fees and costs include imcentive payments made 1o dealers
and acquisition fees collected from customers. Deferned mcome inchedes pavments received on affiliste sponsored subvention and
other mcentive programs. Both deferred fees and costs and defemed income are capitalized or defierred und amortized on a
siraight-line basis over the contract tenm. The aconal of revenue on investments i operating leases is discontinued al the time an
account is delermined to be uncollechble and subsequent revenae s recognized only 1o the extent a paymient is received.
Oiperating leases may be restored 1o accmml stafus when future payments ane rexsonably assured.

Vehicle Lease Residlual Values

Contractunl residual values of vehicle bease contracts are estimaded at lease incepiion by examining external indusiry data, the
anticipated Tovotn, Lexus, and private label product pipeline and our own expenience. Fuctors considered in this evaluntion
include mucroeconomic forecasts, new vehicle pricing, new velicle incentive progroms, new vehicle sales, vehicle features and
specifications, the mix and level of used vehicle supply. the level of current used velucle values. and fuel prices. We are exposed
10 a sk of loss 1o the extent the customer retumis the vehicle and the value of the velicle is lower than the ressdil value estimated
at inception of the lease or if the number of retursed vehscles is higher than snicipated.

Deprecintion on operuting leases is recognized using the stmight-line method over the lease lerm. The depreciable basis 15 the
origimal scquisition cost of the vehicle less the estimated residual value of e vehicle at the end of the lease erm. On a quanerly
basis, we review the estinaied end-of-term market values and return mitcs of leased vehicles 1o assess the approprinteness of the
carrying values ai leasc-end. Faciors affecting the estimated end-of~ienn inarket valoe are similar (o those considered in the
eviluation of residunl values at lease inceplion discussed above. Adjustments to depreciation expense to reflect revised estimates
of expecied market values at lease tenmination and revised retum mies are recorded prospectively on a strmghi-line basis over the
remaining lease tenm

We use various channels 1o sell velucles returned i lease-end. Upon disposition, the difference between the nel book value of the
lease and the proceeds received from the disposition of the asset, incheding any msurince proceeds is recorded as an adjustment (o
deprecintion on operatimg leases.

We evahuie our investment in operating leases ponfolio for potential onpairment when we determane a fnggering event has
occurred. When u iriggering evenl has eccumed, we perform a test of recoverability by comparing the expected undisconnted
future cash Mlows (including expected residual values) over the remaining lease tenms o the carmying value of the asset group. 17
e 1est of recoverability identifies o possible impuimmen, the assel group'’s Gir valse s measured inaccondance with the Gur value
measurement frmework. An mmpairmient charge would be recognized for the amount by which the carmving value of the assci
proup exceeds its estimmed (air valse and would be recorded in our Consolidated Stutements of Income. As of March 31, 2023
and 2022, there was no impiirmenl in our investisent in operating leases portfelio.
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Nots 5 - [nvestments in Onerating Leases, Net (Continugd)

Our depreciation policy for operating leases incorporates our historical experience on early terminations due to customer defulis
into the useful live of the velicles. We conssder the effects of operating lease early terminations when delenmining depreciation
estimates, which are included as part of accumulated depreciation within Investmients in operating leases, net on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Depreciation on opernting leases in the Consolidated Statemients of Income.

Investments in operating leases, net consisted of the follewing:

March 31, March 31,
2023 2012
Iinvestments in ogersling leases ; s gl s 45682
Deferred income (694 (1272}
Accumuliied depreciation (8,245 ) (8955
Ivestments in openting leases, wel 5 06D 8 35,455

I Includes securitized investments i operating leases of $15.3 billion and 516.2 billion as of March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectiviely,

The follewing table presents futire minimum lease payments due 1o us as lessor under investments in operating leases afier March
31, 2023:

Future minimum lease paymens on

Years ending March 31, operaing leases

2024 5 4,755
2025 2439
2106 82
027 57
2008 2
Thereafler =
Talal 5 BT

A portion of gur operating lease contracts has hisiorically tcrminated prior to maturity, Future minimnm lease payments shown
above should not be considered indicative of future cash collections.
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{Dollars i millions)

Naft § - Derivati Hedzing Astiviti 1 E
Derivative Instrumeits

Oir linbilities consist maimly of fixed and varipble rate debt, denominated in U5, dollars and various other currencies, which we
issue m the global capita] markets, while our assets consist prinmrily of U5, dollyr demominmed, lixed nve receivables. We cnter
into interest rate swaps and forcign currency swaps 1o cconomically hedge the interest rute and foreign currency risks thit result
from the different charctenistics of our assets and liabilities. Owr use of denivative transactions is iniended to reduce long-tenm
Mhectuntions in the fair vahee of assets and linbilitics caused by nurket movemems. All of our derivatives are categorized as not
designated for hedpe sccoumting, omd oll of our derivative activities ore authorsed and monitored by our munagement and our
Assei-Liability Commitiee which provides a fromework for financial controfs ped governance o manage market risk,

All derivative instrumeenis are recorded on the balonee sheet at [air value, wking imo consideration the effects of legally
enforceable master netting agreements that allow vs to met seitle asset and liability positions and offset cash collateral witls the
samie counterparty on i net hasis, Changes m the fair vahie of our denvative instraments are recorded in Interest expense in our
Consolidated Statements of Income. The derivative instruments are included as a component of Other assets or Oiher lishilities on
our Consolidated Balance Sheeis,

ENffsetiing of Derivaiives

Accounting guidance permits the net presentation on our Consolidated Balance Sheets of derivative receivables and derivative
pavables with the same counterparty and the relwed cash collateral when a legally enfiorceable master netting agreement exists, or
when the denvative reccivables and derivative pavables mcet nll the conditions for the right of selofl 10 exisL. When we meet this
conditien, we clect 1o present such balances on a net basis.

thver-the-Connter (“OTC") Derivatives

Onr Intermational Swaps and Derivatives Assecintion Masier Agreemenis are oar master nelting agreements which permil mmliple
transactions 1o be cancelled and settled with a single net balance paid 1o either party for our OTC denvatives. The master netting
agrecments alse condain reciprocal collateral agreements which require the transfer of cash collateral to the party in a net assel
position across all transictions. Our collateral agreements with substantially all our counterparties include a zero threshold, full
collatcralization armangement. Although we have daily vahmation and collatern] exchange amangements with all of our
counterparties, due to the time required to move collmeral. there may be a delay of up 1o one day between the exchange of
collateral and the valuation of cur derivatives. We would not be required to post additional collateral to the counterpartics with
whonm we were in a net liability position ot March 31, 2023 if our credit ratings were 1o decline, since we fully colluteralise
without regard 10 eredit ratings with these counterparties. In addition, as our colliteral agreements mclude legal night of offset
provisions, collsenl amounts are netted against denvative assels or denvative [abilities, wd the net smount i mcluded in Other
assets or Caher linbalities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cenfrally Cleared Derivarives

For our centrally cleared derivinives, vanaion margin payments ane legally characterized as senlement payments and accounted
for with corresponding derivitive positions as one unit of sccoui as oppoesed 1o collaveral. Indgial manzin paymens are separately
recorded in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheeis, We perfoam valuation and margin exchange on a duily basis.
Similar 10 the OTC swaps, there may be a delay of up 10 ane day between the exchinge of margin payments and the valuation of
our dervatives
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note = Derivatives, Hedzing Activities and Interest Expense (Continued)

Devivative Activity Impact on Conselidated Financiol Statenents

The following tablics show the linancial statement line itlem and amount of our derivative assets and liabilities that ure reporied on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Fair Fair
MNedsoni] value Maotional valisg
Oiher assets:
Imterest re swaps 3 36799 % 1588 % 64327 5 1,425
Fareign cirreney swaps 1,237 49 1554 55
Total LY SROd6 8 1937 % 65921 5 1 A%0
Counterpany netting (6:54) (761}
Collateral held (1,237) (658 )
Carrying vahee of derivative contracts — Other assets 5 5l 5 ]
Oler linbilitics:
Imlerest g swaps 5 46082 5 68 5 19003 % 12
Foreign currenicy swaps G447 1,412 8,102 ny
Tatal 3 52519 % 1470 % 008 35 1.53%
Counterparty netling (659) (761}
Collateral posied (794 ) (733}
Cormymng vabue of dervative contracts = Other Habihitics S 17 5 23

A of March 31, 2023 and 2022, we held excess collateral and variation margin of 523 million and 2 million, respectively, which
we did not use o offsel dervative assets and was recorded in Cdher liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheeis. As of March
31, 2023 wnd 2022, we posted indtial manzin, excess collveral, and viriation oorgin of 3265 million and 5132 million, respectively,
which we did ot use W offsel derivative Liabilities and was recorded in Other assets on vur Consolidaied Balance Sheels.

The follewing tble sumnarises the componends of interest expense, including the location and amount of gains and losses on
derivative instrunsents s related bedged iems, as reported in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years Ended March 31,
2023 022 2021

Inlerest expense on debi L 2919 85 1498 % 1,954
Interest (income) expense on deriviives (360} 107 420
Interest expense on debd and denvatives 2,350 1,605 2374
{Caing) losses an debt denominiied in

forgign Currencics (hld} (435 ) 1,402
Losses (gains) on foreign currency swaps Bis H1% (1351}
Losses (pains) on U.S. dollar inlerest nie swaps 513 (584 ) (123}
Total interest expense 5 AL 1401 3 2502

Interest expense on debl and derivatives represents net interest settlements and changes in scomals, Gains and losses on
derivatives and debt denominated in foreign currencics exclude net interest scitlements and changes in accruals. Cash flows
associmted with derivatives are reporied in Wet cash provided by operating activitics in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)
Npts 7 - Del 1 Credit Faciliti
Diebt and the related weightcd average contractual interest rates are summanzed as fol lows:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Weighied Weighted
averge average
Carmying contrachel Camying contrachual
Face vahse value interest muies  Face value vitlue interest rules
Unsecured nodes mnd loans pavable § 7030 & TEAd0 1.48% £ EK1542 § H2I88 1.30%%
Secured notes and loans payable 32T 12,736 376 26,907 205, R L01%
Total deb 5 HLIT0 % 111,685 1500 § a4y 5 109,152 1.2%%

The carrying value of our debt icludes uamortizod premiums, discounts, debi issumice costs mud the effecs of foreipn cumrency
transkation adjustments. Debt 1ssuance costs are deferred and amortized Lo interest expense on an effective yield basis over the
contractual tenm of the debi.

Weighied average contraciunl interest mitcs are caleulated based on onginal netional or par value before consideration of premim
or discount and approximue the effectve imlerest mles,

Dbt is callable a1 par value, Scheduled maturities of our debi porifolio are suminznsed below. Actual repivment of scoured debt
will vary based on the repayment astivity on the relied pledged assats,

Fuiure

Years ending March 31, debil nuurities
224 5 44,504
2025 32,173
20026 6,654
027 8293
20028 5307
Thereafier ' 7,151
Unamortized premiums, discounts and dei issuance cosis (485)
Total debt ¥ 111,685

! Usecured and secursd soles and loans payable mature om variows dates through facal 2049,

Unsecured Notes and Loars Payable

O umsecured noles and loans payakble consist of commercial paper and fined and varinhle rate debt. Short-term funding necds anc
maet thraugh the issuance of commercial pager in the US. Amounts outstanding under our commercial paper programs were 516.7
billiom end 5169 billion as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Upon issuance of fixed mic debt, we generally cloct to cnver into pay-float swaps 1o convert fixed mate payvments on debt 10 Moating
rae paymenis. Centnin unsecured noles mnd loans payvable are denaaninited in various foreign curencies. The debt is mansliied
into L5, dollars using the applicable exchunge rate at the runsaciion date and retrumslaed ai cach balanoe sheet date using the
exclange nie ineflect at that dage. The resulting iransaction gains and kosses are included in lverest expense in owr Consolidated
Statements of Income. Concurrent with the issuance of these forcign currency unsecured nodes and boans pavable, we enter into
cumrency swiups in the same notional amount 10 convert non=UL%S. currency payments to LS. dollar denominated payiments. Gains
and losscs related 1o forcign currency transactions arc included in Interest expense m our Consolidated Siatements of Income.

Certmin of our unsecured notes and loans payable contwn covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature,
inchuding negative pledge provisions, cross-default provisions and limitotions on certain conselidations, mergers and sales of
assets. W are curmently in compliance with these covenunts and condilions.
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Note 7 - Deht and Credlit Facillties (Continued)
Secured Notes and Loans Pavable

Our secured notes and boans payable sre denominaied in LS. dollars and consist of both fixed and variable rate debl. Scoured
nobes wwd loans payable are isswed using on-balance sheet scouriization trusts, a5 further discussed in Mode 8 — Vanable Interest
Entitics. These notes are repayable only from collections on the underlying secuntized refail finance roceivables and the beneficial
interests in investments m opemating leases and from relnted credit enhancenients. Some of our secured notes are backed by o
revelving poold of finance receivables and cash collateral, with the ability to repay the nodes in full afier the revolving period ends,
after which mn amortization period begins.

Credit Facilittes and Letters of Credif

For additional liquidity purposes, we maintain credit facilities, which may be used for general corporite purposes, as described
below:

Jed-Day Credli Agreemend, Mhiree-Year Credit Agreement amd Five-Year Credit Agreement

TMOC, Tovots Credit de Precnio Rico Corp. ("TCPR™), a wholly-owned subsidiury, and other Toyota afTiliates arc party 1o a 55.0
hillion 364-day syndicated bank credin Mcility, a $5.0 billion three-year syndicated bank credit faciliny, and a 55,0 billion Gve-year
syndicated bank credit facility, cxpinng in fiscal 2024, 2026, and 2028, respectively.

The ability to make drows is subject o covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, including negative
pledee provisions, cross-defnalt provisions and limitations on cerain consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. These
agrecments wene nod draown upon and had no outstanding balances os of March 31, 2023 and 2022. W are curremly in compliance
with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreements described above.

Comnniited Revalving Asser-backed Faciliiy

We are panty o a 3od-day revolving sccuritizntion fcility with cenain bank-sponsored asset-backed comduits and other fnancial
instiniions expiring in fiscal 2024, Under the tenms and subject 1o the conditions of this fcility, the commitied lenders under the
facility have commitied to make advances up o a Gacility Limit of 580 bilhon backed by eljzible retil fmance receivables
iransfiermed by us to a special-purpose entity acting as borrower. We utilized 55,5 billion and 53 2 billion of this Gcility as of
March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

e Unsecuwed Crodit Agreaments

TMCC 15 pary 1o additional unsecured credit facilitics with vanous banks. As of March 31, 2023, TMCC had commiticd bank
credit facilitics totaling 54.6 billom, of which 523 billion, 180 million, and 2.1 billion meiure i fiscal 2024, 2025, and 2026,
respectively.

These credil agreensents conlain covenanis and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, inchading negative pledge
provisions, cross-delault provisions and lomitntions on certmn consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. These credit cilines
were nod drivsn upon and had no outslandimg balances as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, We are currently in compliance with the
covenants and conditsons of the credit agreements descnibed above.

TMCC 15 party 1o a 550 billion three-year revolving credit facility with Toyota Motor Sales, US A Inc. (“TMS™), expiring in
fiscal 2006, This credit facility was not drown upon and had no oustmding balance us of March 31, 2023 and 2022

Froin Hime 1o time, we may bormow from affilizies based wpon o maniber of business factors such as funds wvailability, cash Mow
tirnimge, relative cost of losds, and market sccess copabilities. Amounts borrowed from aililiates are recorded in Otlser Liabilitics on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Npte 8 — Variable | Entits

A VIE is an entity that either (1) has insulTicient equity 1o penmit the entity 1o finance its activities without additional subordinated
fmancial support or (i) has equity investors who lack the charactenstics of a controlling financial interest. The primary
heneficiary of a VIE is the party with bath the power 1o direct the activities ol the VIE thm most significantly impact the VIE's
coonpnic performance and the obligation 1o absork the losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant o
the VIE.

To assess whether we hive the power 1o direct the activities o a VIE that most significantly impact its economic performance, we
consider all the fets and circumsiances including our role in estabfishing the VIE and owr ongoing righis and responsibilities. This
assessment includes identifving the wctivitics that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performuance and identilying
which pargy, if uny, has power over those activities. In general, the party that makes the most significam decisions affecting the
VIE is determined 1o have the power to direct the activities of the VIE, To assess wheiher we have the obligation o absorb the
losses or the right 1o receive benelits that could potentially be significant to the VIE, we consider all of our cconomic inferests,
inclhuding debt and equity imerests, servicing rights and Tee crmngements, and any other variable interests in the VIE. 1Twe
determine that we are the party with the power 10 make the most significant decisions afTfecting the VIE, and we have an obligation
1o absorb the losses or the right 1o receive benefits thal could potentially be significant to the VIE, then we consolidate the VIE.

We perform ongoing reasscssmends, usually quanierly, of whether we are the pnimary beneficiary of a VIE. The reassessment

process considers whether we have acquired or divested the power to direct the most significant activities of the VIE through

changes in goverming documents or other circumsiances. 'We also reconsider whether entitics previously determined not 1o be
VIEs have become VIEs, based on new evenis, imd therefore could be subject to the VIE consolidation fmmewark.

Cenrsolidated Variable Interest Entities

We use one or mare special purpose entities that are considered VIES to issue asset-backed securities 1o third-pany bunk-spensored
asset-backed secuntizntion vehicles and 1o inveslors in securilztion irmsactions, The securitics issucd by these VIEs are backed
by the cash flows related 10 retail fnance receivables and beneficial interests in investments in operating leases (“Sccuritized
Assets”). Wi hold variable interests in the VIEs that could potentially be significant 1o the VIEs. We detenmined thit we are the
primary beneficiary of the seouritization trusts because (i) our servicing responsibilities for the Securitized Assets give us the
power to direct the activitics that most significanily impact the performunce of the VIEs, and (1i) our varisble mierests in the VIEs
ive us the obligation 1o absorb losses and the nght o receive residunl retums that could potentially be significant.

The following tables show the asseis and liabilities related to our VIE sccuritization transactions that were included on gar

Consolidated Balance Sheets:
March 31, 2023
VIE Asscis WVIE Liabilitics
Nel
Restricted securitized Onher Other
cash as5els issels Dbt libilitics
Retail finanece receivables % 1434 § /T4 8 LI 35155 8§ 41
Ivestments in operating leases G506 I3 21 7581 L]
Total 5 20§ 39827 5 05 5 273 S 51
March 31, 2022
VIE Assets VIE Liabilitics
Ket
Restricied securilired Chher Chiher
cash 1sscis a5E15 Debi Tiabilities
Retal finance receivables 4 1284 § 20932 % 1 .8 18562 & K
Inwvestiments in opening leases 043 11 886 15 8302 2
Total 5 192 5 2EIE S [T 0464 5 1
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Note 8 - Variable | Entities (Contigued)

Restricted cash, including restricied cash equivalents, shown in the previous fables represent collections [rom e underlving MNet
securitized assets and cennin reserve deposits held by TMOC for the VIEs and is included as part of Restnicted cash and cash
eiquivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Met secunitized assets shown in the previeus tbles are presented net of deferred
fees and costs, deferred income, acoumulaied depreciation, and allowance lor credit losses. Odher asscts represent aconsed
interests related to securitized retail finance receivables and used vehicles held-for-sale that were repossessed by or returned 1o
TMCC for the benefit of the VIEs. The relsted debt of these consolidated VIEs is presented net of $1.5 billion and $1.7 billion of
securities retained by TMOC at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. (Hher linhilities represent scorsed mierest on the debt of
the conselidaied VIEs,

The asseis of the VIEs and ihe Resincied cash and cash equiviidents held by TMOC serve as the sole source of repayinent for the
assei-backed sccurities issued by these entities. Investons in the notes isswed by the VIEs do not have recourse to us or our other
assets, with the exception of customary represcntation and warranty repurchase provisions and indemmitics.

As the primary beneficiary of these entities, we are exposed to credid, residual value, imierest rate, and prepaymeent risk from the
Securitized Assets in the VIEs. However, our exposure fo these risks did nof chonge as a result of the transfer of the asscts o the
WVIEs. We may also be exposed to interest rate risk anising from the secured noles issued by the VIEs.

In addition, we entered into interes! rale swaps with certain special purpose entities that issue variable mie debt. Under the terms
of these swaps, the special purposc cntities are obligated 1o pay TMOC a fixed rate of inferest on certin payviment daies in
exchange for receiving o Moating rale of interest on notions] anounts equal o the owstnding balance of the secured debt. This
armmangement enables the special purpose entitics to mitigaie the iverest rate risk inherent in issuing variable mie debi that is
secured by fixed rae Sccuntized Assots,

Thie transfers of the Sccurifized Assets to the special purpose entities in our secuntizations are considered to be sales for legal
purposes. However, the Secuntized Assets and the related debt remain on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize
fmancing revenue on the Seourinzed Asseis and interest expense on the secured debit issued by the specinl purpose entiies. We
also muuntain an allowanee for credil bosses on the secunitired retail finance receivables using a methodalogy consestent wath thit
used for our non-sccuritized asset porifelio. The inderest mte swaps between TMOC aid the special purpoese entities are considered
intercompany transactions and there fore are eliminuted m our consalidated fnmmcial stalements.

Non-corsolidated Variable Interest Enfities

We provide lending 10 Tovota and Lexus dealers through the Toyota Dealer Investment Group's Dealer Capital Program (“TDIG
Program™) operated by our affiliate TMNA, which hos an cquity imterest m these dealerships. Dealers particepating in this progrm
have been determmed 1o be VIEs. We do not consolidate the dealerships in this program as we are not the primary beneficiany.
Any cxposaere 1o loss 15 Timited to the omoant of the credn facility. Amouns due from these dealers under the TDHG Progrm thi
are classified as Fimnee receivables, net on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2023 and 2022, and revenues camed
fronn these dealers during fiscal 2023, 2022, and 2021 were not signilicant.

M
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Nple 9—C . | Continnenii
Cempturitments aind Carantees

‘W have entered into certain commimnents and gusrantees for which the maximum unfunded amounts are summanzed in the tbkle
below:

March 31, Murch 31,
2023 2021

Cormmitments:

Credit facilities commitments with dealers 5 5 8 1249

Comimimments under operating lepse agreencnts 106 1%
Tolal comanitments 3259 3408

Caaraniees of affiliste pollution control and solid waste disposal bonds 14 1k
Total commitmens and guaranices % 3350 § 1508

‘Wholesale Minancing is noi considered 0 be a contractual comnritment as the amangements are nol binding smangements wisder
which TMCC is required to perform.

Cavsinnniti ey

We provide fixed and variable rmie working capital loans, revolving lines of credit, and real estate financing 1o dealers and various
multi-franchise organizations refermed (o as dealer growps for facilitics construction and refurbishment, working cagpital
requirements, real estale purchases, business acquisitions and other general business purposes. These loans are typically secured
with licns on real estate, vehicle inventory, and'or other dealership asscts, as appropristie, and may be puarameed by individual or
corparate guarantees of ailivted dealers, dealer groups, or dealer principals. Althoogh the loms ane typically collierilived or
mearumiecd, the value of the underlying collateral or guarantees may not be suflicient 1o cover our exposune under such agreements,
Oir pricing refects market conditions, the competitive environment, the level of suppon dealers provide for ouwr retail, lease and
volunuey proleciion business and the creditworihiness of each dealer. Amounts drawn under these facilitics are reviewed for
collectability on a quanerly basis. in conpmction with our evaluation of the allowance for credil losses. [n addition 1o the total
comumitments and guaramees in the previous table, we have also extended credin facilities 1o affiliates as descoribed in Mo 12 —

Belated Parpy Transactions.
Laase Crmmitmenis

Our operating lease porifolio consists of real estate leases. Total operating lease expense, including payments to affiliates, was $32
million for fiscal 2023, 32 mallion for fscal 2022, and 336 mollion for fiscal 2021 We have a lease agreement through August
2032 wath THMMNA Tor our headauarters fncility im Plano, Texas. Comimitments under operaling lease agreements tn the previons
table inchede S76 miliion and $54 mollion for facilities leases with affiliates an March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Leate ienms may contiin renewal and extension epions or carly ermbnatien features. Generally, these options do not impact the
lense term because TMOC is mol reasonably certain thin it will exercise the options. These ease agreenwents do mol mpose
restrictions on our ability 1o pay dividends, engage in debt or equity financing tramsactions or enter into Turther lease agreemenis,
nor i they have residual value guaraniees. We exclude from our Consolidaed Balance Shects leases with a enn equal 1o one
year of less and do not separate non-lease componenis from our real estne leases.
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Note 8- . | Conti ses (Continued)

O comumitnients under operating lease agrecments are summarized below:

Muarch 31,

Yeurs cinding Manch 31, 2023

2024 5 1%
n2s 15
20026 14
027 13
2028 13
Thercalier i3
Todal ] 10k
Present vislug discount (11
Total operating lease lability 5 95

Operating bease labilitics and right-of-use (“ROLUT) assets are recognized at the Iease commencement date based on the presem
value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term, As the interesi raie implic in the lease conirci s rypically noi
readily determinable, we utilize our incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement dae for the duration of the lease term.

The following mbie provides additienal information relaied 1o operating lease agreements for which we are the bessee!

March 31,
2023
ROU pssets 5 43
‘Weighted average remaining lease ierm {im years) T.6
Weighted average discoum rae 2 R6%

Gruarantees and Oiher Cantingencies

TMEE has guawramteed bond obligatons totaling S HHI mallion i prncipal thar were issued by Pumam Coanty, West Virginin and
Gibzon County, Indinna to finance the construction of pollution control facilitics A manufacturing plams of certain TMOC
affilunes. The bonds muture in the following fscal years ending March 31: 2028 $20 million; 2029 - S50 million; 2030 - 10
million; 2031 « S10amillion; and 2032 < S10 million. TMCC would be required 1o perform under the guarantecs in (e event of
non-payment on the bonds and other related obtigations. TMEC is entitled to reinsbursement by the applicable affiliaves for any
amiounts paid. TMCC receives a noninal anmual fee for guaramiecing such pavmients, TMOC has not been required to perform
under any of these affiliaie bond guarmmees as of March 31, 2023 and 2022,
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingeneies (Cantinued b

Tndemnification

In the ordinary course of business, we cnter info agreenents costaiming indenmification provisions standard in the industry related
1o seversl types of transactions, including, bad noet lanited 1o, debl unding, derivatives, securilization transaclions, and our vendor,
supplicr and service agreements. Performance under these indemmitics would generally ocour upon o breach of the representations,
wirtnniics, covenunis or ¢dher commitmsents made or given i the agreement, or as o result of a third-party claim. In addition, we
lave ngreed in certain debt and derivative issuances, and subjoct 1o certain exceplions, o gross-up payments doe to third partics in
the event that withbolding iax is imposed on such payments. In addition, certain of our funding arrangemenis may require us o
pay lenders for incrensed costs due 1o centain changes in laws or regulations, Due to the difficulty in predicting evends which could
cause a breach of the mdemmification provisions or trigger a gross-up of other payment obligation, we are nod able 1o estimate our
mepcimum exposure o fre payments that could result from claims made under such provisions, We have not made amy material
pavmenis in the past as a resalt of these provisions, and as of March 31, 2023, we determined that it = not probable that we will be
required 1o make any material pavments in the fture. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, no amounds have been recorded under
these indemmification provisions.

Litigation and Covernmental Proceedings

Various legal actions, governmental proceedings and other claims are pending or may be instituted or asseried in the futune aghinst
s with respect to mottcrs arsing in the ordinary course of business. Centnin of these actions are or purporn to be class action suits,
socking sizeable dumapes andior changes in our business operations, policies ind practices. Certain of these actions are similar to
suits that have been filed against other financial instittions and captive finance companics. In addition, we are subject to
povernmental and regulatory examinations, information-gathenng requests, and mvestigations from time to time at the state and
fedeml levels. 1i 15 inherently difficult to predict the course of such legal actions and governmental inquires.

We perform periodic reviews of pendimg claims and actions 1o determing the probabality of adverse verdicts and resuliing amounis
ol linkility. We establish acorumls for legal claims when payments associated with the claims become probable and the cosis can be
reasomably estimated. When we are able, we also determine estimates of reasonable possibility of loss or range of loss, whether in
excess of any related accrued liability or where there is no accrued liability. Given the inherent uncertainty associated with legal
maticrs, the acual costs of resolving begal claims and associated costs of defense may be substamtially igher or lower than the
amwounis for which aceruals have been estnblished.  Based on wvailable informution and established scemuals, we do ned believe il is
reasomably probable that the results of these prococdings, cither individaally or in e aggregate, will hivee 3 moterinl adverse effect
o our consolidated financial condition or resulis of operations.

On November 24, 2020, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau CFPBR™) issued a civil investigative demand to the Company
secking. among other things, cernin mformation relanng 1o the Company s vehicle and payment protection products and credin
reparting policies and procedures and reporting records, We are coopenating with the inguiry and cannot predict the eventual
scope, duration or outcomse ot this ume. As a resull, we are uniable o estinate e amount or rangee of myy potential loss arising
[roan this investigation.
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Note 10 - Peqsi | Other Bengfit P!

We are a panicipating employer in cenain retivément and post-retirement medical care, life insurance, and other benelits sponsosed
by TMMA, an affiliate. Costs of cach plan are generally allocated 1o TMCOC based on relative benelit costs associated with
participating or eligible employees s TMCC as compared to the plan as 3 whole.

Defined Benefit Plan

Prior to Jameary 1, 2005, our emiployees wene penerally eligible 1o participate in the Toyota Motor Sales, LS A Inc. Pemsion Plan
{the “Pension Plan™) commencing on the Tirst day of the month following hire and were vested after 5 years of oonlinuous.
employment. Effective January 1, 2005, the Pensson Plan was closed 10 employees first enployed or reemploved om or after such
date.

Benefits pavable under this non-contribinory defined benelit pension plan are based, generally, upon the emplovees' vears of
credited service (up to a maximum of 25 years), the highest avernge anmual compensation (as defined m the plan) for any 60
consecutive month period out of the last 120 months of employment (the *Applicable Years™), and one-half of eligible bonus/zift
pavmenis for the Applicable Years (recalculaied to determine the annual average of such amount), reduced by a percentage of the
estimated amoaum of social security benefits.

Costs allocated to TMOC for our emiployees in the Pension Plan and cerain other non-qualified plans were not significant for
fiscal 2023, 1122, and 2021,

Defined Cowiribution Plan

Employees meeting cennin eligibility requirements, as defined in the plan documentis, may panticipate in the Toyota Motor Morh
America, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan.  Under this plan, eligible emplovees may elect o contribute between | percent and 30
percent of their eligible pre-tax compensation, subject o federal tax regulation limits. We maich 6667 percent of the first &
percent that a participant comributes, up to € peroent of eligible compensation. Participants are always 1000 vested in their
contnbutions to the Retirement Savings Plan. Employer contributions vesi on o 4-vear graded schedule a1 25 percent per year.
Generally, comribanions are fimded through bi-weekly paviments to the plan’s administrator. Certain enployees hired on or after
Jamanry 1, 2005, may be eligible to receive an additional Company contibution (o the plan caloulsied based on their age wd
COMpensation.

TMCC employer contnibutions to the sivings plon were not significom for fiscal 2023, 2022, und 2021,

tither Post-Retirenent Bewefit Plons

Emplayees are generally eligible 1o participate m sdher post-retirement benefits sponsored by TMNA which provide ceram
medical care and b insurance benefits 1o eligible retired employees. Generally, in order to be cligible for these bencfits, the
emiployves must be age 55 or older with 10 or more vears of service.

Other post-retirement benefit costs allocated 10 TMOC were ned significant for fiscal 2023, 2022, and 2021

95
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Mote 11 - Inepme Tases

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes under which deferred tax ascets and liabilities are adjusted 1o reflect
changes in tax rates and law's in the peried such changes are enacled resulting m adjustments (o the current fiscal year™s provision

for mcome 1axes.

TMOL files a consalidated federal income tx retum with TFSIC and its subsidiaries. Curment and defiermed federal income mxes
are allocated o TMOC as if it were o sepanie taxpayer. TMOC s netl operating losses and tix credits are utilized when those losses
and credits are nsed by TESIC and ns subsidiarices inchiding TMOC in the consalidated federal imcome tix returm. TMOCC filles
either separnte or consolidated ‘combined stale income 1ax retums with TMNA, TFSIC, or subsidinrics of TMOC. Siale income fox
expense is gencrally recognized as if TMOC and its subsidiaries fled their tm retums on a siand-alone basis. In those states where
TMCC and its subskdiarics join in the fling of consolidated or combined income tax retums, TMOC and its subsidiarics arc

allecazed their share of the toial income tax expense based on combined allocation/apporticianeni
income or loss. Based on the federal and ste inx sharing agreements, TFSIC and TMOC and its

factors and scparale company
subsidiarics pay for their share of

the income wx expense and are reimbursed for the bencefit of any of their mx losses and credits otilized in the federal and sue

inoonee 3% relurmns,

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

Years ended March 31,
2023 22 021

Current
Federal (1859 § 1.774 2,156
State 28| 386
Forcign xn 11

Total (1544 2077 3,153
Deferred
Federal 2,100 (1,166} (2,243}
State (123) (2763
Foreign 1 (23

Total 2,173 {1,288 ) {2,521)
Provisien for income taxes o §5 THY 632
A reconciliation between the ULS. federal stututory fax mbe and the effective tix rate is as follows:

Years ended March 11,
023 2022 021

Provision for income taxes ol U5, federal statuory tax rate 210 214r 21,0%
State and local taxes {net of federal tax benefit) 4.3% 1.7% 300,
Changes in unrecognized 1ax benelis 1.3% - P
Federal 1ax credits ' [1.01% (L0 [L5)%s
(rher, et (. 33% - (5%
Effective tix rule 25204 23T 23,005

! The amoanits in Federal tay credins ainclude tax benelits fronm foregn tax credits, plug-in vidhicle credits, and nesearch and development credits
for fiscal 2023, 2022, and 2021 The amosinds in Federn tax credigs also mclude credits for quabified commencinl clean vehicles for fscal 2023

e alternative fiel vehscle cradins for fiacal 2022 and 2021,
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Mote 11— Inepme Taxes (Continuel

Owr net deferred income tax lability consisted of the following deferred tax linbilities and assets:

March 31,
2023 022
Linbilities:
Lease tminsactions 5 4, TG 5 1,504
Voluntany protection dealer coanimissions 403 348
Stare taxes. nel of federal tx beneli 356 75
Mark-io-market of invesimemns in markctable seouritics and derivatives - 24
Ohiher T2 82
Deferred tux liabiblities 5 5617 8 2213
Asseis:
Net operming loss and tix credit camviforwards 1.7 14
Proaasion for eredit and ressdual value losses 47K 3
Deferred costs and foes 197 179
Murk-to-murket of investments in marketable securitics and derivatives 150 -
Accrued expenses 3 45
Lease abligations. 0 23
Oher 17 14
Defiereed s assels 1.892 i
Wahuwation allowance 2) »
Net deforred mx asseis 5 189§ 665
Net deferred ncome tax lability | 5 37375 1564

! Balonce inchades delamed tax assets of £ 16 million and 56 million ot March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, attribuinble to unmealired losses

included in scoumulsied ocher comprehensive loss. The change in this balance is not included in the wial deferved tax expense.

We have deferred tix nsseis related to cumulative federal net operating loss carmy forwards of 5955 million at March 31, 2023 and
none at March 31, 2022, respectively. We have deferred tox assets related to camulative state nel operating loss carry forwards of

%37 million and $13 million at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Siale nel operating loss cammyiorwards will expire
beginning in fiscal 2024,

‘We have deferred ux assels related to federl ax credits for plug-m vehickes and qualified commercial clean vehicles of 511

milhon ond federal tax credit for research and development of 54 million at March 31, 2023, We had no deferred tax assets related

o federal mx credis for velicles or research and development at March 301, 2022 The deferred tax asseds related 1o federnl 1ax
credit for foreign tx were nol significant as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The lederal tax credit comyforwards will

expire beginning in fiscal 2032,

Thee valustion allowance on defermed tax assels wis ol significant as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
determination of the valustion allowance 15 based on mamgement s estimate of futune taable come during the respective

carrviorward penods, Apari from the valuation allowance, we believe that the remaining defermed tax asseis will be realized in

full. Theamount of the deferred tax assets conzidered realizable could be reduced if mumagement s estimates change.
97
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 11 = Income Taxes (Cintinued b

We have made an asscriion of permanem reinvesunent of camings from our forcign subsidiary; as a resull, ether than the deemsed
repatriation tax that is provided pursuant 1o the Tax Cuts and Jobs Aci of 2017, sizle and local taxes have not been provided for
unremitied carnings of our foreign subsidiory. At March 31, 2023 and 2022, these ynremitied camings iotaled 5307 million and
5288 million, respeciively. Determination of the amount of the deferred sinie and local tix liability is noi practicable, and
accordingly no cstimate of the unrecorded deferred state and local tax liability is provided.

Although we do e foresee any events causing repatriotion of enmings, possible examples may include but are not limited 1o
parent company capital noeds or exiting the business in the foreim country,

‘We had an income tax reccivable of $28 million and an income tax payable of 352 million for our share of the income ax in those
siales where we filed consolidated or combined refums with TMNA and its subsidianes at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Addimionally, our federal and stide income tx payable or receivable from TMOC affilisted companies, including TFSIC, TFSB,
and Toyola Fimnancial Services Secunbies USA Corporation, was nod significant for both March 31, 2023 and 3022,

The guidance for the accounting and reporiing for income Bxes requires s 1o as5ess 1ax positions in cases whene the interpretition
of the tax Bw may be uncertain. The change in inrecopnized 1ax benelits ane s follows:

March 31,
023 2022 2021

Balance w1 beginning of the vear 5 rir S 1 15 3 1%
Increases related 10 positions taken during the cument year 2 I |
Increases recorded in curreni year related 1o positions taken

during prior years 1% [ 2
Expirations due 10 lipse of siamlg - - (7
Balance a1 end of vear 5 43 5 . - 4 15

Ar Morch 31, 2023, 1022 and 202§ approximately 543 million, 522 million and $14 million of the respective uorecognized tox
beneliis would, Il recopnized, have an effect on the elfective tax rate. The remaining amounts in the respective unrecognived tax
benelits ar March 21, 2023, 2022, and 2021 are relared 10 timing matiers. During fscal 2023, 821 million of de net increase in
unrecognized tax benefits lad an effect on the effective tax rate, We do net lave any positions for which it is reasonably possible
that the toial amounts of unrecognined tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months,

We necrue interest, iapplicable, related 1o wmikcertann income Uiy posilions in infercst expense, Statulory peiuiltics, il applicable,
acerued with respect 1o unCenaim ncome [x posinons are recognizaed as an addition o the income tax labiliy, For each af fiscal
2023, 2022, and 2021, acerued imenest was nol significan and no penalties were accriscd

In August 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act ("the Act®) was signed it law. The Act modifies climate and clean energy corporaie
1ax provisions, incliding smendments to the federal wax credit for plug-in vehicles available under current 1ax law, The Act also
includics 3 15 perceni corporate alternative minimum =ax based on modificd Anancial suement oot income. applying 1o tx years
beginning aller December 31, 2022, which we expect 1o be applicable in fiscal 2024, As additional guidsnce related (o the Act is
issued, we will evaluaie any impact 1o our consolidued financial siwements, The At does not have a material impact on our
results of operations for Mscal 2023,

Tiev-reluted Contingencies

Ag of Mareh 31, 2023, we remained under IRS exomination for fiscal 2018 through fiscal 2023,
9%
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Thie tables bebow show the financial statement line items and amounts incheded in our Consolidated Statements of Income and on
our Consolidated Balance Sheels under vaniows related pany agrecmenis or relationships;

Years ended March 31,
2023 2022 2021
Nt fMinancing revenoes:
Munufactrer's subwvention and other revenues 3 1243 & 1.746 % 1997
Deprecition on opermbing leases 5 L1/ (. (75%) % (133
Interest cxpense:
Credit support fees, interest and other expenscs 5 Who 5 E - 117
Voluntary proleclion coniracl revenies
and insurance carncd preminms:
Voluritiry prodection comitract revenues
and insurance camed premiums 5 156 5§ 168§ 173
Tnvestment and other income, nets
Imterest and other income 5 5 0§ i 5 1%
Expenses:
Opermting and admmstrative 5 107§ K2 5 L]
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Anscis:
Cash and cash equivilents
Commercial paper

Finance receivables, net
Agcounis receivable
Deefierred retail subvention incomse

Investments in operating beases, net
[ivestments in operating leases, net
Deferred lease subvention income

Oilier asseix
Woles receivable
{(Mher receivables, net

Liabilities:
Other linbilitics

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Uneamed voluntary proteciion contraci revenues

and insurince camed prenaums
Onher payables, net
Nones payable
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March 31, Masch 31,
2023 2002
5 15 5 LKk
g 47 5 )
5 (922 5 [(BT5)
3 (250) 8 (2123
5 410y 8§ (9233
5 1,237 &8 89
5 bt 5 A0
5 1540 5 374
s 432 5 LT
5 B 5 .4

TMOC receives subvention payments from TMNA which result in a gross monthly subvention receivable. As of March 31, 2023
and 2022, the subvention receivable from TMNA was 579 million and 566 million, respectively. We have a nuister netting
agrecment with TMMA which allows us 1o net seitle payments for shared services and subvention mnsactions. Under this

agrecment, us of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, we had a nei wmount payable (o TMMNA wlhich is recorded in Ciher

pavables, net in Oiher liabilitics,

Our Board of Directors declared and paid cash dividends of approximately $2.5 billion to TFS1C during fiscal 2023

(L]
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Note 12 — Belated Party Transactions (Continued)
Financing Support Arrangements with Affiliawes

TMCC is party 1o a credit support agreement with TFSC (the “TMCC Credit Suppon Agreement™). The TMOC Credit Suppont
Agreement recuires TFSC o maintain certain ownership, net worth maimenance, and debt service provisions with respect 1o
TMCC, but is not & guaraniee by TFSC of any securitics or obligations of TMCC,  In conjumction with this credit suppon
agrecment, TMOC hus agreed 1o pay TFSC o semi-moal fee based on g fixed rie applicd o the weighted average owstanding
amount of securities entithed 1o credit support.

TCPR is the beneficiary of a credit suppori agreement with TFSC containing provisions similar to the TMCC Credit Suppori
Agrecment described above.

In addition, TMCC receives suppor from and provides financing suppor to TFSC and other affiliates in the form of promissory
mobes and varsous boan and credit Eacility agrecments. As of March 31, 2021 and 2022, total fnancing support available from
affiliates tolaled approxinutely S8 4 billion and 385 billion, respectively, These amounds include a 55.0 billion three-year
revalving credit facility with TMS which currently expires in fiscal 2026, As of March 31, 2025 and 2022, 1otal Anancing suppon
available to affiliates todaled approximately $7.8 billion med 58.0 billion, respectively. The mmounis outstanding under these
agreements are recorded in Other asseis and Other labilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2023 and 2022

In Apml 2023, TMOC eered mie a one-year revolving credit agreement with TMS, pursuant to which TMS is entitled 1o borrow a
maximmuwm amount of S50 million.

{hther Fimancing Nupport Provided to Affiliafes

TMCC provides wholesale financing, real estate and working capital loans 10 certain dealerships that wene consolidated wath
another affilivte under the accomiing guidance for vanable mierest entities. TMOC also pays these dealers orgination fees. These
costs represent direct costs imcurred inconnection with the acquisition of retail and lease contracts, inchsding subvention and other
cash incentive programs.

TMCC has guomuniesd the payments of prncipal and interest with respect o the bomds of manufaciunng peilities of cerimn
affilmtes. The mature, business purpose, and amounts of these purantees are described in Molg @ — Conymitmenis god
Continpgncies.

TMOC and TFSB are parties to a masier parlicipation agreement pursuant 10 which TMOC agreed 1o purchase no more than S60
mtillion per vear of residential mortgage loans originated by TFSB thay meet specified creditl underwriting puidelines. At March
31, 2023 wd 2022, we had 52 million, respectively, in loun participations ouistoding Gt had been purchased by TMOC wmder
this agreement.

1901
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Note 12 = Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Mhrrred Nervice Arrangenvents with Affiliates
TMCC is subjoct 10 the following shared service ngreemenis;

THMCC incurs cosis under various shared serviee agreements with TMMNA and other afiliaies. Services provided by
affiliates under the shared service agreements inchude ceriain technologicn! and administrative services, such as
information systems suppon, facilities, insurance coverage, huniin resources and other corporate services. TMOC may
also panicipate and incur cosis im shared marketing efforts with TMMNA

TMCC provides varioas services 1o ils subsidiaries and affiliates, including certnin administrative and corporate
services, operational support, information systems support, Thcilities, treasury, and vendor management services.

TMCC provides various services 1o TESB, including marketing, adminisimiive, systems, and operational support in
exchange for TFSB making wvailable cortain financial producis and services o TMOC's customers and dealers mecting
TFSB's credit standards. TMOC is party 1oa master netting agreement with TFSE, which allows TMOC to met setile
payments for shared senvices between TMOC and TFSB.

TMOC 15 a party to expense reimbursement agreements with TFSB and TFSC related (o costs inowrred by TMOC or
these affiliates on behalf of the other party in comeection with TMCC s provision of services 1o these affiliales or the
provision by these aflilintes of certmn fnancial products and services 1o our customers and dealers in suppon of
TMCC s customeer loyalty strategy and programs, and other brand and sales support.

TMCC receives support from and provides suppor to TFSC and other affiliates in the form of proanissory noles and
various boun and coedil Gacility agreements, including a revolving credat Gcility with TMS, which may be used for
general componile purposes,

TMOC and TFSB are parties 10 a services agreement, entered into July 2021, wherein TMOC will subservice loais on
belullof TFSB

1452
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Mote 12 — Related Party Transactiens (Contin )

Eperational Xupport Arrangemrents with Affiliates

TMCC and TCPR provide various wholesale financing to dealers, which result in us having payables 1o TMNA und
Tovolz de Pucrio Rico Corp.

TMCC s party to a lease agreement with TMNA for our headquarters facility in Plimo, Texas, expiring in 2032, a
customer service center located in Cedar Rapids, lowa, expiring in 202%, and owr Dallas Dats Center expiring in 2026,
The lease conmmitmens are described in Node 9 — Connnitments ami Contingencics.

Subvention receivable represems amounts due fromn TMRA and other affiliztes in support of retail and lease
subvention and other cash incentive programs offered by TMCOC, Deferred subvention income represents the uncamed
poniion of amounis received from these mansactions, and manuficturers” subvention and other revenues primarily
represent the eamed pontion of such amouns.

Imvestmenit in operating leases imcludes contractunl residunl value support received from affiliates which are
recognized as an offsct to depreciation expense over the life of the contraci,

TMCC is a participating emplover in cortain retiremend, post-retiremend medical care and life insurance benelits

sponsored by TMNA. Refer to Moge 10 — Pepsion and Ciher Bepefit Plags for additional information.

TMCC is party to agreements with TMNA and other affiliates relating to the tcam member vehicle benefit program,
which allows team members 1o lease Toyota and Lesus vehicles on terms exclusive to the benefil program. TMNA
servies as the chiel administrator of the program. TMOC acquires and services team member leases afier origination
A portion of the vehicles used for the team member vehicle benefit program are acquired from TMNA, TMOC
receives a per vehicle contribution [rom participating affiliates 10 assist wiih the costs of its contribution io the benelit
progeram, and TMOC pavs a per vehicle participation fee to TMMA to particrpate in the benefit program.

Affilime voluntary pretection coniract revenues and insurance eamed premiums primarily represent revenues from
TMIS for coverage and relased admimistrative services provided o TMNA and other affiliates. This mcludes
contraciual indemnity coverage for limited wamantics on cenified Tovotn and Lexus pre-owned vehicles and related
wiministrative services for TMNAS certified pre-owned vehicle progmm and wmbeella linbility policy. TMIS also
provides nmbrella ability insurance (o TMMNA and other alTilintes covering cenain dollar valoe livers of risk above
various printry or sellisured retemtions. On all lavers in wihiclh TMIS has provided coverage, 99 pescent of the risk
has been ceded to a reinsurer.

[t}
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measarements

Fair value is defined ns the price that woauld be receaved o sell an asset or paid to transfer a limbility i m orderly transaction
between market participanits at the measurement date. In order to determine the fair value of our asscts and linbilitics, we use
quented prices for identical or similar instnanenis, otherwise we ulilize valuation models with observable or calculated inpuis. The
s of observable quotes for identical or similar instruments and the use of unobservable inputs is reflected in the Gir valee
hierarchy assessment disclosed in the tbles within this Note as Level 1, 2 and 3 defined below. The availability of observuble
inpuits can vary based upon the fimancial instnsment and other factors, such as instnment type, market liquidity and other specific
chamcienistics particular to the Minancial instrament.  To the extent that a valuation is based on modeks or inputs that are less
observable or unobservable m the market, the determination of fiir value requires additionn] judgment by management. We use
prices and tnputs that are current as of the measurement date, including during periods of market disruption. In periods of market
disruption, the availability of prices and inputs may be reduced for cerain financial instruments, This condition could result in
financial instrument being reclassified from Level 1 fo Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3.

Level 13 Quoted {unadjustedy prices in active markets that are sccessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted asseis
or linkilitics.

Level 22 Quoted pnces in achive markets for similor asse1s and liabilities, or mpats that ane ohservable, either directly or mdirectly,
for substantially the full term of the asset or liabiliny.

Level 3 Unobscrvable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and may require significam judgment in order 1o
detennine the fuir vitlue of the assets and linbilities,

Valuation Adjustments

We may make valuation adjusiments to cnsurc that financial instraments are recorded at fir valoe. These adjustments include
amounis to reflect counterparty credit quality, our own creditworthiness, as well as constraints due to market illiquidity or
unebservable parmmeters.

Recarring Fair Vadwe Measurennenis
Cirsly el casl equivalents and Restricied cosh and ench egriivalents

Thie fair valoe of cash equuivalents and restricted cosh equivalents approximales the carmyng value and these instramenls ane
clussified as Level | within the fair valwe hiemrchy.

fvestoweniy in markelable securiifes

We cstimaie the value of our AFS debt secaritics, mcluding those for which the fur value option was clected, using observed
transacton prices, independent third-party pricing valwtion vendors, and internal valuation models.

We may hold investments in actively traded open-end and private placement equity investments. Where the equily investments
produce a daily net asset value that is quoted man active market, we use this value wo determine the fair vahee of the equity
investmend and classify the investment as Level | within the fGir value hicrarchy, The fair value of equity imvestmenis that produce
a daily et asset value st s not qusted in an active markel 15 estinted using the net asset value per share (or its aquivalent) as a
proctcil expediem and are excluded from leveling within the fair vahse igrarchy.

In mddinon, we may bobd sndrvidial secunnes where valuaton methodologies and impots o vihmnon models depend on the
security 1ype. thus they may be classified differcntly within the leveling hierarchy, Where possible, quoted prices in active markets
for identical or similar securitics ane wsed 1o determine the fir vilue of the investment securities; those securities ang classified as
Level 1 or 2, respectively. Where quoted prices in sciive markets are ned available, we use various valuatbon models for esch asset
class thal are consestent with what market participants use. The mpuls wnd asswmptions o the models are derived from market
observable sources including: benclimark yiclds, reponied iades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benclanark securities. bids,
offers, and other market=relaed data. These mvestments ang gencrally classified as Level 2 witlin the fur value hicrarchy.,
however, depending on the significance of the unobservable inpuis they may also be classafied as Level 3,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)

Nofe 13 — Fair Yalue M Conti m
Derivatives

We estimnte the fair value of our derivatives usmg industry stndard valuation models that require observable market imputs,
inghiding nsarket prices, micrest mics, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, counterparty credit risk. our own non-performance risk
and the comtractual terms of the derivative instruments. We consider counterparty credit risk and our own non-performance risk
throwgeh credit vahiation adjnstments,

For derivatives that trade an liqusd markets, model mputs can generally be venified and do not require speificint managensent
Judgmient. These dervvanve instruments are classified as Level 2 within the for value hierarchy

Certiin oiher derivitive trnsactions trde i less lguid markets with limited pricing information. For such derivatives, key inputs
10 Uhe valuation process inchude quates from cowmterparties wwl other morket data used o cormoborne und adjust values where
approgriate. Other market data includes values obtained from a market participant that serves as a third=pany valuation vendor.
These derivative instrunients are classified as Level 3 within the fuir vadue hierarchy.

Nompecurring Fair Valwe Measurennemts

Wonreeurring fair value measuremenis include Level 3 net finance receivables thai are not measured an [air value on a recurning
Tsis but are subject 1o Gair value adpestmems ulilvang the far vabhee ol the underbying collmeral when iere 1s evidence of
impairmenl. Nonrecwrting fair value ilenes as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 were not significant. Betabl finance recelvables greaier
ham 120 davs past due ane measured at fair value based on ihe Gair value of the underlying collateral less cosis 1o s¢ll. The fuir
value of collateral is based on e cument average selling prices for like vehicles al wholesale used velicle auctions,
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b = TFairih

Financial gssets and finmncial linbilities are classified in their entirety bused on the lowest bevel of input that is significant to the
fir value measuremem. The following tables summarize our financial assets und financial linbilities measured ot fuir value on a
recuming basis by level within the fair value hierarchy except for cortain investments that are measured al fair valee using the net
asset vahiee per share {or its equivalent) as a practical expedient and are excluded from the leveling information provided in the
tables below. Fair vilue amounts presented below are imtended to permit reconciliation of the fuir value hicrarchy to the mmounts
presented on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

March 31, 2023
Commnicrpary
nettmg & Fair
Level | Leved 2 Level 3 collateral value
Investments in matketahle seourities:
Available-lor-sake dcbi sevuntics
U8, government and agency obligaiions & T40 5 4 5 = % = L T44
Foroign povernmient and sponcy ohligntions . 12 - - iz
Municipal debd sevurities - & - - S
Corpomie debd securntics . 430 - 430
Munngageshacked securities:
LS. govemnmment apency - 73 - - n
Bom-apency residential . f ] - 9
Nom=sgemcy commarciz] . 53 ] . 58
Aseri-hacked secunines - Hiy Ak - 120
Availabde-for-salke deba securniies wonal il Lol ki = 1434
Eiguity inveslmenis:
Fiaed income manual famds:
Fixed meome masival fnds messured ol
ncl assed value 1081
Total rerurn boaid fuisds 161 - . - Lo
Equity sl funids &7 - - = 70
Liquity imvestmenls total 2502 . = = 1,563
Invesiments in masketshle secunties toinl 33 i 44 = Loar
[ervitive assxts:
Inferest e swaps . {1 ES E = 1LREE
Foreign currengy swaps - L] - - a4
Countorpary nefling sl collsicral - . - (1 586 {1 RRG )
IMerivative ossets folal = 1937 = R0 k1
Manets an faar value .'15-1-_! T hini 44 15 L QRR
IMervative hiahilimes:
Inserest mte swaps . [ETEY] E - [T
Foteign cumney swaps - [LECT ] - - [{ELL 3]
Coumterparty nefting am collsteral - . 1455 1453
Lishilithes mi fair valse - {1470) - 1453 (173
Kt mrvors a1 i valuo 5 M2 5 [NEER] T ] [ 5071
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)
Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued )
March 11 20022
Counlerparty
neing & Faia
Level | Level 2 Level 3 collateral vl
Invesiments in marketshle seournities
Availabile-fon-sale deba securities
U5, government and sgeney abligaisons L] S0 L3 5 5 ' L - L9 LI
Foreign government andd sgency obligntions - k] - - i3
Mfunscipal debt securitics . 1 = - i
Corporate debd secuntics - 568 - - 568
Muorgage:backed securties:
S, govermimam agency’ - an - - an
Nomsapency residential . T 1 - i}
Mom-apemey commiereial - " ] - i
Aseet=backed secunties = 5 1 = kL]
Avnilable-foa-sale debq seeurities woinl S THE 14 = 1304
Exquity invesisments:
Iinwad income martunl fonds
Frued neowmc iiidiial femds memiired ot
miel ansst valus L1137
Total retumn bond fusds 1,576 - - - 1L.576
Equity munsl funds Fih - - - N3G
Equity imvestments tikal 2,512 - - = 1640
Investmemis in marketable securities tolal X000 This 14 = 4953
[eranve assets:
Inscrest rate swaps - 1415 - - 1425
Torcign cumeney swaps a 55 = - 55
Coimtempany mening snil collsers] - - - 1LY TN
IRenvative nsscts total - 14D = (ha1ay &l
Asseis of far value X004 ] 14 11408y Lofd
ervative Hahilimes
Interest e swaps - K221 - - (K225
Foreign cumency swaps - (717 s . {717
Coumtemparty netting anid collatoral - - . 1.514 1514
Lishilities st fair voles - {1,339 - 1,514 [2%)
St mewvts i aar vt ) EXT T LFE I 1 14 5 G5 % -InLﬂ'?
Level § Fair Filue Memswremenis

The Level 3 financinl asseis and liabilities recorded at fair value which are subject to recurning and nonrecurring fir value
measurement, and the cormesponding activity and chunge in the fair valve measurements of these assets und liabilities, were not
significant 1o our Consolidated Balance Sheeis as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, or Consolidaied Statements of Income for the years
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
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Note 13 = Fair Value Measurements (Continned)
Financial Instesments Nl Carried af Fair Value
Fimanee receivahles

Or finance receivables consist of retall loans and dealer financing loans, which are compnsed ol wholesale, real estate and
waorking capitul mancing. Retail Minance receivables are primanly valued wsing a securitization mode| that icorporaies expected
cash flows. Cosh Nows expected 1o be collected are cetimated using contractual principal and interest pavmenis adjusted for
specific faciors, such as prepavmients, extensions, delfiult mtes, Joss severity, credit scores, and collseral type. The securitiznlion
madel utilizes quoted secondary market rates if available, or cstimated markel rates that mcorporate management's best estimate of
invesior sssumpaions sbout e portfolio. The dealer financing portfolio is vaheed using o discounted cash flow model. Discount
rates are denved based on market rates for equivalent portfolio bond mtings. As these valuations utilize unobservable inputs, our
finance receivables are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Unsecured rotes and foans pavable

The Cuir value of commencinl paper is psswmed (o approsinute (e curying value due 1o its shon duration and genermlly negligible
credit nsk. W validate this assumption by recalculating the fair value of our commercinl paper using quoted market rates.
Commercial paper is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hicrarchy.

Other unseoured notes and loans payable are primarily valued using current market rates and credit spreads for debq with similar
maturitics. Our valuation madels utilize observable inputs such as standnrd industry curves; therefore, we classify these unseoured
noies and loans payvables as Level 2 within the fair value hicrarchy, When observable inputs @re not available for all assumptions,
we estimate the fair valuee using intemal assumiplions such as volatility and expected credit losses. As these valuitions atiline
unobservable inputs, we classify these unsecured notes and loans pavable as Level 3 within the fair value hicrarchy.

Secired rotes and loars payaile

Fair value 15 estimmied based on current marke! rates and credit spreads for debt with similar maturities. We also wse internal
assumiptions, mcleding prepayment speeds and expected credit bosses on the inderlying secunitied assels, 1o estimate the timimg of
cash ffows 1o be paid on these instnuments. As these valuations utiliee unobservable inputs, our secured notes and loans payables
are classified as Level 3 within the Giir vilue hieranchy.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measarements (Continged)

The following tables provade information about nssets and liabilities not camied ot fnir value on a recurning basis on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Murch 31, 2023

Carrying Total Fair
wvitlue Level | Level 2 Level 3 villug
Finnncial assels
Fimance receivables
Betail loan 5 TEHMSF 5§ - 8 - 5 TTEHY 5 77049
Wholesale 1072 - - 3,968 31968
RBeal estute ERU - . 4 5N ERLEL
Working capatal 3113 - - 3,058 3058
Finnncial linhilities
Unsecured motes and boans pavable S TRMS 5 = 5 Tod0l 5 = 5 76401
Secured notes and loans payable 12,736 - - 32173 32,173
March 31,2022
Carrying Toal Fair
vitlug Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 villug
Financial assels
Fiance receivables
Renail loan L T T T 1 - % - % TIMS 085 TIKS
Wholesale 2,00 - - 2,531 2931
Real esaate 4,995 - . 4,961 ERL |
Working capital 2,256 - - Zin 2,17
Frisangial labibiees
Linsecured meves and boans payable § BIIER 3§ = 5 HO9%0 % = 85 B0
Secured notes and loans payable 5 26864 S - & = 5 NSH 5 26500

Accroed interest related 1o finance reccivables is in Other asseis on the Consolidated Balance Sheets; however, TMCOC measures
the fair value of cach class of finance receivables using scheduled principal and isterest payments, Therefore, acerued interest his
been included i the carmying value of each class of flinance receivables in the previous tables, along with fnance receivables,
deferred origination costs, deferred income, and allowance for credit bosses.

Finance reccivables in the previows tables exclude related party iramsactions which are classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. The previgus tables also exclude relsied pany noies receivables and nodes pavables recorded in Cther asseis wmd Other
liabilitics on the Consolidaicd Balance Sheets which are classilied as Level 3 within the fxir value hicrarchy, Refer wo Mo 12 -

Belated Pary Transactions lor additiona] infornaion.

e
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Note 14 = Scgpment Information

Our reporiable sepments are Finance operations and Volundary protection operations.  Finance operations include retail, leasing,
and dealer mancing provided 1o authorized dealers and their customers i the U.S. and Peerio Rice. Voluntary protection
operations are performed by TMIS and i1s subsidiarics.

Financial infermation for our repenabie operating segments. which includes allocated corporale expenses, is summarized a5

Tallows:
Year emlbed March 31, 2023
Woluntary
Fmance prodection Interoompany
operalions operalions clmmistions Total

Total financing revenues 5 1129 5 - § - 5 11,293
Depeecaatum on operating leass L ) . . - Jr
Imtewest expense BRI - - 1054
Ml Eruml:l.'ng nevemiies 117 H - 3117
Voluntary prolection comrmct reveniics
and msurnmee camed premmiumes . 1 /3 . 1,053
Tevestment and other income (loss), net 304 217 - a7
Mel financing and other revenues 3411 R . 4,267
Expenscs:

Trovasion for credil leases. T3 - - m

Operating aml sdmenstrative 1331 A5 - 1,7

Violumiary protection contract expenses and insurance losses - AT - 4
Total experses 20 b k] - 2050
Tercommee (livss ) befiore imcome taxes 1,387 (™) - 1308
Provasson {benelit] for mcome nxes B (17 - 120
Ml income (Joss) 5 141 5 62y % - 8 ¥
Tednl asscls 5 13109x 5 G63E % (13) 5 137.595

1
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Note 14 = Segment Information (Continuel}
Wonr emilen] Murch 31, 2022
Valuntary
Finance protection Istercompany
aperulions aperulions eliminalyns Towal
lotnl financing reventes 5 T 2 T 1 - % - % (f R k. 1}
Diepreciatsm on apernting leases SR - . 5,546
lmterest expense 1401 - - 1,401
Nel fnancing revenies AMTH - - 4,673
Volunliry prolection comfruct revenies
mnd meurnnge eamed premnmes - | JES = 1,015
lavesiment and other meome (loss), net 45 (7L . {26)
Nel financing mmd other revemues 4718 M - 5,662
Ixpenscs:
Provision for credil Josses. 234 - - 256
Operating end sdministrative 1311 386 - 1,697
Wolumlary protection contract expenses and fnsurance losses - 405 = 405
Tolal expenses 1.547 Tl - 1358
Icoame befiane ibcome ke 117 153 . 313
Provasson for incoms: tnxes 733 H - THY
Het ineome 5 A6 % e % - % 2,535
‘Il aseeis 5 126688 3 G5 5 (133) & 155,41
Year endesd March 31, 2021
Valantary
Finane eolection Intercompany
operalions aperations climunatns loial
Ttal Anancing reventies % (. . 1 . 1 . [ B 1
Diepreciation on aperating leases 5932 - - 5032
Tmleres) expense 2.3m - - 23R
Nel fimancng revenies 3,565 . . 3,565
Voluntary protection comtmct revemes
nel insurnmnee camaed premdums - kL - 056
TImvestment end other moome, oet 93 an - 410
Mel Anancing and odler reveniies 14658 1,273 - 4,931
Expenscs:
Taovisaon G credil Tosses: A6 - - 426
Ciperating amd sdmenstrative 1124 A = 1 ART
Volumiary protection comtmet expenses and insmnce lsses - el - [
Tolnl experses 1.550 LA - 2.1
Imcome: hefore income laxes 2108 541 - ek
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Note 14 - Segment Information {Continuel )
Voluntary: profeciion aperations

The voluniary protection operations segment ofTers vehicle and paymem protection products on Toyeda, Lexns and other domestic
and impor vehicles that are primarily sold by dealers nlong with the sale of a vehicle.

Talwriary prodection confrocl reverins

We receive the contractually determined dealer cost at the inception of the comiract. Revenue is then deforred and recognized over
ihe term of the contract according o camings factors established by manogement that are based upon historical loss experience.
Contracts sold range in term from 3 1o 120 months and are typically cancellable a1 any time. The effact of subsequent
cancellations 15 recorded as an offset (o uncamed voluntary protection contract revenues in Other liabilities on our Consolidaied
Balance Sheats.

For the years ended March 31, 202% and 2022, respectively, approximaicly 83 percent and 82 pescent of voluntary protection
contracl revenues in the Volumlary protection operations segment were accounted for under the puidance for revenue from
contmels with customers,

The Veluntary prodcction operntions scgmend defers contraciunlly determined incemtives paid to dealers as contract costs for selling
wvoluntury prolection products. These costs une recorded in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and are amoriced o
Operating and administrative expenses in the Conselidaed Statements of Income using a methodology consistent with the
recognition of revenue. The amoumt of capitalized dealer incentives and the relaled amortiztion was nod significant io our
consolidated financial statements as of and for the vears ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,

W had 52.7 billion and 52.5 billion and of uncamed voluntary protection contract revenues [rom contracts with customers
includied in Other liabilities on our Consolidued Balince Sheets a5 of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, respectively. We
recognized SE00 million of the uncamed amsounts in voluntary protechion contract revenues in our Consolidated Statements of
Incomne during fscal 2023, compared 1o 8704 million during fiscal 2022, As of March 31, 2023, we had uncamed voluntary
probection contract revenues of 52.9 billion mcheded in Other liahilitics on our Consolidated Balince Sheet, and with respect to this
balance, we expect 1o recognize revenne of approximately 3327 million in Mscal 2024 and 521 billion thereafier.

Tnsnrance earied prewiums

Revenues from providing coverage under various insuranee contracts are recognized over the term of the coverage m relation to
the timing and level of aticipated clums, Revenues from imsurance policies, net of premaums ceded to reinsurers, are camed over
b terms of the respective policics in proportion to the cstimated loss developmend. Management relics on listorical loss
experience as o basis for estublishing camings factors used 1o recognize revenue over the term of the contract or policy.

lahentary profection confract expenses and insurance losses

Voluntary protection contract expenses and insurance losses inchude amoums paid and acorued for boss events that are known and
Tave been recorded as clanms, estimates of losses mewrred but wod reported based on achuril cstamates and listorical loss
developmendt partems, and loss adjustment expenses that are expected 1o be ncwrred i connection with setiling and paying these
cliims,

Ageruals for unpued losses, losses incurred but mol reported, and loss sdjustment expenses are incheded in Other labilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. These accruals ansing from contrcts entered ste by TMIS arc not significant as of March 31, 2023
and 2022, Estimited liabilitics are reviewed regularly, ad we recopnize any adjustments in e periods in which they are
determined. 1M amnicipated losses, loss adjstment expenses, and wnamortized acquisition and manienance costs cxoeed the
recorded uneamed prenium, o premvium deliciency is recognized by first charging ainy unamsortized acquisiiso Cos1s 10 Cxpense
and then by recording a labality for any excess deficiency.
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Risk Transfer

Our voluntary protection operstions iransfer certain risks 1o protect us against the impact of unpredictable high severity losses.
The amounts recoverable from reimsurers and other companics that assume liabiliies relating to our Volumary protection
operations are determumed in o oumoer consistent with the related reansurance or nsk transfer contract. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers and other conmpanics on unpaid losses are recorded as receivables but are not collectible unnil the losses are paid
Revenues related 10 nsks transferred are recognized on the same basis as the related revenues from the underlyimg contracis.
Covered losses are recorded as o reduction 10 Voluntary profection comract expenses and msurance kosses,

13
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)
116 117 118 119
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
— | 29,866,547 | 27,214,504 | 31,379,507 | 37,154,298
— 2,792,942 2,932,354 3,990,532 3,668,733
— 2,036,140 2,245,261 2,850,110 2,451,318
— 1,555,009 3,217,806 3,954,350 3,251,090
19,907,100 | 20,618,888 | 23,404,547 | 26,245,969 | 28,338,706
53,416,405 | 53,972,363 | 62,267,140 | 67,688,771 | 74,303,180
() 1,405.65 1,490.80 1,674.18 1,904.88 2,089.08
() — 145.49 160.65 205.23 179.47
() — 144.02 158.93 205.23 179.47
() 37.3 38.2 37.6 38.8 38.1
() — 10.0 10.2 11.5 9.0
() — 8.9 10.7 10.8 10.5
— 2,398,496 2,727,162 3,722,615 2,955,076
— 2,124,650 4,684,175 577,496 1,598,890
— 362,805 2,739,174 2,466,516 56,180
3,602,805 4,098,450 5,100,857 6,113,655 7,516,966
) 371,193 361,907 366,283 372,817 375,235
[86,708]| [86,596]| [80,009]| [87,120]| [94,974]
2021 10 116
2021 2021
2023 31
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115 116
2019 2020

30,225,681 | 29,929,992
2,285,465 2,554,607
1,882,873 2,076,183
1,936,602 1,866,642
)| 20,565,210 | 21,241,851
)| 51,936,949 [ 52,680,436
1,366.18 1,450.43
130.11 147.12
129.02 145.90
37.3 38.1
9.8 10.4
10.0 8.8
3,766,597 3,590,643
2,697,241 3,150,861
540,839 397,138
3,706,515 4,412,190
370,870 359,542
[ 87,129] [ 86,219]
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)
115 116 117 118 119
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
12,634,439 | 12,720,731 | 11,761,405 | 12,607,858 | 14,076,956
2,323,122 | 1,735,365 | 1,886,691 | 2,171,530 | 3,520,848
1,896,825 | 1,424,062 | 1,638,057 | 1,693,047 | 2,936,379
635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,997 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997 | 16,314,987 | 16,314,987
47,100 47,100 47,100
12,450,275 | 12,590,891 | 13,804,021 | 14,607,272 | 16,493,041
17,716,994 | 17,809,246 | 21,198,281 | 20,991,040 | 23,230,320
() 845.11 875.44 959.55 1,060.16 1,215.84
220 220 240 148 60
( , ) ( 100) ¢ 100) ( 105) ( 120) ( 25)
211 264 264
( , ) ( 105.5) (132.0) (132.0) « ) « )
() 131.42 100.85 116.56 121.98 214.99
() 129.98 100.05 115.31 121.97
() 70.3 70.7 65.5 69.6 71.0
() 15.5 11.4 12.4 11.9 18.9
() 9.9 12.9 14.8 18.2 8.7
() 33.5 43.6 4.2 42.6 27.9
O 74,515 74,132 71,373 70,710 70,056
] [ 11.122] [ 10.795] [ 9,565]| [ 9,017 [ 11.405]|
O 98.3 101.7 136.2 176.6 155.9
() (95.0) (85.9) (122.1) (124.6) (131.8)
TOPIX)
2,475
() 7,686 8,026 8,712 (1 2,283
1,622
() 6,045 5,771 6,163 120 1,764
29 2020 31 118

118
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2021 10 115
118 120 28
148
115 116 117 118 119
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
220 220 240 260 300
) ( 100) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120) ( 125)
2021 2021
2023
2022 2022
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@
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2,141,906 2,200,557 2,174,001 2,350,615 2,836,907
313,306 281,329 474,498 646,813 430,675
222,308 223,836 350,229 478,661 288,778
267,214 103,547 497,070 801,434 531,283
2,893,403 3,005,729 3,484,968 4,294,851 4,533,337
23,660,621 | 24,574,145 | 27,482,433 | 30,751,097 | 34,457,131
( ) | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41 | 2,184,614.29 | 2,689,761.92 | 2,824,298.62
() 141,552.90 |  142,525.61 | 223,004.92 | 304,782.79 | 183,876.74
() = = - - =
() 12.1 12.0 12.5 13.7 12.9
() 8.0 7.7 11.0 12.5 6.7
() — — — — —
) 10,634 11,469 12,226 12,986 13,771
(1,540) (1,542) (1,386) (1,374) (1,489)
)
29 2020 31 2022

2022

240/324




EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

@

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
75,532 67,138 67,148 116,713 483,893
63,027 52,635 47,481 91,361 460,159
57,665 43,866 41,009 82,651 445,939
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
580,459 621,868 665,834 747,288 880,949
586,472 629,775 674,448 757,115 895,661
369,601.93 | 395,968.40 | 423,963.15 | 475,828.45 | 560,935.91
63,674.00 . . 7,640.00 | 272,842.00
(63,674.00) (=) | (191,020.00)
36,717.92 27,931.86 26,112.55 52,627.34 | 283,947.19
99.0 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.4
9.6 7.3 6.4 11.7 54.8
173.4 — — 14.5 96.1
85 99 230 120 127
(14) an (23) (20) an

(

)
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2000
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Henderson, ( ) 700 100
Nevada, U.S.A. (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( 100
Sao Paulo, Brazil ) (100)
141,670
( 100
Mexico City, Mexico ) (100)
491,368
( )
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 253,350
( ) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, ( )
New Sou?h Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
St Leonards,
New South Wales, ( ) 2 (188)
Australia
( 87.38
Bangkok, Thailand ) .
18,100 (0.04
4,100,000 100
o (
Makati, Philippines ) 60
8,700,000
65
)
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OoOoOoOoOodno
(€))
2023 31
)
2,520
3,894
454
6,776
C ) 127
13,771 (1,489)
) (
) ( )
)
«C )
@)
2023 31
) ) ) C )
127(17) 41.6 5.4 10,184
) ( )
( ) )
(©)
O]
( ) 50.0%
27 64
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OooooOodd
() MC D
(D)
(G
5.4 92.0| ( 2) 47.0 50.6 58.5| ( 3)
33.3
— 33.3| ( 1) — — —
33.3
— 33.3| ( 1) 83.2 83.6 —
27 64
76
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4,306 2,161
4,838
4,542 3,646
3,632

« )

2,620
400 104
« D

8,335
2,318 2,043

« )

645

4

«C D

6,767

1,067 280
34 4,571
9,097 28 2,403
29 9,237
3,357 13 7,412
5,333
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8,369
3,804
2,887 1,898
3,671
4,601 3,687
237
2,767
171
1,686
7,060
2,037 2,167
4,675
1,318 16 1,825
2,384
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) )
1,817,098 0.3
17,966,134 10.8
997,607 18.9
9,105,196 12.6
29,886,036 10.8
)
) )
262,071 10.0
1,833,546 17.8
64,586 36.0
676,703 33.2
2,836,907 20.7
)
UK 51
@ ( )
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ooooooo
( )
1,769,913
2023 31
( ) )
4,882,190 100.0
4,882,190 100.0
2023 31
( )
)
1,928
846 | 14,409 373| 15,629 G
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3)
2023 31
( )

( )
(Plano 12,523 | 20,073 1,152 | 42,749 ?é?3§
Texas, U.S.A.)

)
)
o
( 2023 2024 31 )
2,176,732
33,528
@
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(€))
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 _ _
)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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OOooOoOoOoo
)
(2023 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2023 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2023 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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ooooooo
€))
@
®
*
23 2023 272,842 191,020
)
)
( ) (@)
2023 1 299,996 191,020
2023 28 128,501 81,822
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1985
2017

2018

1961 23 2019 )

2019

2019

1972

2001

2007
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2018
2018
2022

2023
Executive Fellow

1986

2016

2020

1963 10 19 )
2022

2022

2023
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75 — 80 —
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OoOoOoOoOodno
(€))
( )
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
943,868 1,131,185
, 19,792,889 , 22,709,771
2,160,538 2,294,074
910,666 1,119,622
862,165 1,383,063
339,531 397,400
24,330,597 28,240,317
C ) , 5,010,983 , 4,882,190
33,315 33,654
5,044,298 4,915,844
67,476 79,155
931,215 , 924,776
377,509 296,928
1,308,725 1,221,705
6,420,499 6,216,705
- 108
30,751,097 34,457,131
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OooooOodd
( )
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
650,387 702,710
) 2,774,399 ) 3,412,687
3,724,548 3,640,738
3,240,317 3,613,447
58,717 42,268
1,957,116 2,329,384
12,405,487 13,741,235
8,163,623 8,501,142
, 5,298,949 , 6,708,173
319,338 641,308
14,895 16,326
18,236 18,159
235,715 297,448
14,050,757 16,182,558
26,456,245 29,923,793
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
3,681,563 3,658,346
3,919,988 3,896,771
10,588 24,366
583 655
314,286 562,499
304,282 538,789
70,580 97,776
4,294,851 4,533,337
30,751,097 34,457,131
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( )
( 2021 2022

2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
2,350,615 2,836,907
1,227,191 1,784,266
1,123,423 1,052,641
513,001 672,199
610,332 380,441
430 4,203
7,884 9,033
26,010 34,734
3,213 3,479
37,538 51,451
381 651
675 566
1,057 1,217
646,813 430,675
- 866
5,831 -
5,831 866
415 132
415 132
652,230 431,409
298,074 84,319
- 249,730
127,869 302,296
170,204 136,885
482,025 294,523
3,364 5,745
478,661 288,778

271/324



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
( )
( 2021 (2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
482,025 294,523
12,729 13,779
411 721
325,435 250,092
6,291 1,168
319,408 236,759
801,434 531,283
794,511 523,285
6,922 7,998
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oOoOooodn
2021 2022 a1 )
( )
78,525 159,900 3,204,079 3,442,505
1,177 1,177
78,525 159,900 3,202,902 3,441,327
478,661 478,661
— — 478,661 478,661
78,525 159,900 3,681,563 3,919,988
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,484,968
1,177
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,483,790
478,661
12,729 644 327,935 315,850 16,549 332,399
12,729 644 327,935 315,850 16,549 811,061
10,588 583 314,286 304,282 70,580 4,294,851
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OooooOodd
( 2022 2023 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 3,681,563 3,919,988
311,995 311,995
288,778 288,778
)
— — 23,217 23,217
78,525 159,900 3,658,346 3,896,771
10,588 583 314,286 304,282 70,580 4,294,851
311,995
288,778
) 13,778 72 248,213 234,506 27,195 261,702
13,778 72 248,213 234,506 27,195 238,485
24,366 655 562,499 538,789 97,776 4,533,337
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)
( )
388,430 331,597
( )
79,612 69,471
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( )
( )
31 2021 17
27
27
( )
( 27 (2022 10 28 ))
( 25 (2022 10 28 ))
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(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
1,362,831 1,430,597
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
82,531 86,658
25,876 28,444
1,940 2,342
1,940 2,342
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
4,158,242 4,138,255
64,756 73,936
13,990 15,322
4,236,989 4,227,513
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
4,708,591 4,801,261
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
3,590,063 5,299,689
1,456,539 1,480,204
— 64,895
— 111,999
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
17,032 —
1,594,782 2,191,303
2,304,374 3,083,935
8,148 17,625
24,026 19,668
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(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
3,847,339 5,245,194

(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
3,252,832 4,923,442
1,456,539 1,480,204
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2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
119,005 150,980
90,639 170,975

2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
( )32,690 ( )137,702

2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
16,661 18,016
153 161
16,815 17,854
4,085 4,075
12,729 13,779
208 517
696 521
487 1,039
76 317
411 721
325,435 250,092
6,291 1,168
319,408 236,759
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ooooOoog
( )
( 2021 2022 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
2022 6 22 11,998 7,640 | 2022 3 31 2022 6 23
(2022 2023 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
1)
2022 6 22 11,998 7,640 | 2022 3 31 2022 6 23
2023 3 15 299,996 191,020 | 2023 2 28 2023 3 16
(2)
2023 6 28 128,501 81,822 | 2023 3 31 2023 6 29
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( )
( )
@
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
775,579 771,859
576,838 555,719
115,527 120,682
1,236,891 1,206,896
@
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
324,644 414,821
281,448 338,101
225,781 263,932
116,156 117,695
43,467 44,318
4,823 6,088
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
311,229 317,959
202,245 201,298
143,827 140,324
82,359 81,719
25,949 22,832
9,967 7,725
( )
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
856,017 801,713
908,695 682,110
1,764,712 1,483,824
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(2022 31 )
( )
@ 19,792,889
« ) 296,118
19,496,771 19,829,058 332,287
@ ¢ ) 1,583,699
« ) 35,478
1,548,220 1,623,963 75,742
(©) 1,771,265 1,808,678 37,412
22,816,257 23,261,700 445,442
(€ « ) 11,888,172 11,723,650 164,522
@ « ) 8,073,349 8,010,370 62,978
19,961,521 19,734,020 227,500
« D
83,480 95,055 11,575
302 305 2
83,177 94,750 11,572
« )
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
« D ®3)
70,615
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OoOoOoOoOodno
(2023 31 )
( )
(€D 22,709,771
« ) 351,706
22,358,064 22,359,537 1,472
@
1,738,354
«C )
C ) 36,724
1,701,630 1,755,873 54,242
®3) 1,971,593 2,008,308 36,715
26,031,288 26,123,718 92,430
() « ) 12,141,880 11,742,647 399,233
O « ) 10,120,861 9,988,193 132,667
22,262,741 21,730,841 531,900
C )
4,767 62,181 57,413
28 54 26
4,739 62,126 57,387
«C )
C )
C )
« )
«C )
C ) )
C ) ©)
72,805
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(2022 31 )
(¢ )
943,868 — —
6,648,156 11,502,082 1,335,901
555,470 999,379 13,042
42,963 145,002 254,127
760,653 — 446
803,617 145,002 254,574
8,951,112 12,646,465 1,603,518

(2023 31 )

( )
1,131,185 — —
7,589,145 13,386,366 1,400,537
634,740 1,072,886 12,140
280,571 74,445 303,914
342,261 — 495
622,832 74,445 304,410
9,977,904 14,533,698 1,717,088
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(2022 31 )
(¢ )
650,387 — —
3,240,317 —_ _
3,726,600 7,096,529 1,090,908
2,774,399 5,046,248 252,700
10,391,705 12,142,778 1,343,609

(2023 31 )

( )
702,710 — —
3,613,447 — —
3,642,097 7,548,562 979,992
3,412,687 6,551,197 156,976
11,370,942 14,099,759 1,136,968
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@
(2022 31 )
67,136 — — 67,136
187,758 233,877 5,216 426,852
1,175,163 139,526 — 1,314,689
— 66,855 — 66,855
— 258,429 — 258,429
1,430,057 698,689 5,216 2,133,963
— 277,081 — 277,081
— 142,956 — 142,956
— 420,038 — 420,038
(2023 31 )
68,630 — — 68,630
379,724 219,883 17,970 617,578
1,177,335 144,764 — 1,322,099
— 110,454 — 110,454
— 379,687 — 379,687
1,625,689 854,790 17,970 2,498,450
— 281,078 — 281,078
— 146,910 — 146,910
— 427,988 — 427,988
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(2022 31 )
— — 19,829,058 19,829,058
— — 1,623,963 1,623,963
_ 426 — 426
— 426 21,453,022 21,453,448
— 11,723,650 — 11,723,650
— 4,180,113 3,830,257 8,010,370
— 423 — 423
— 15,904,186 3,830,257 19,734,443
(2023 31 )
— — 22,359,537 22,359,537
— — 1,755,873 1,755,873
— 743 — 743
— 743 24,115,410 24,116,153
— 11,742,647 — 11,742,647
— 4,826,974 5,161,219 9,988,193
— 769 — 769
— 16,570,391 5,161,219 21,731,610
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(2022 31 )
( )
3,175 2,118 1,057
3,422 3,288 133
127,039 105,207 21,831
133,637 110,614 23,022
4,476 5,498 1,022
423,430 442,409 18,979
1,187,650 1,209,467 21,817
1,615,557 1,657,376 41,818
1,749,194 1,767,990 18,796
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(2023 31 )

( )
2,664 2,118 546
25,637 25,378 259
125,644 112,957 12,687
153,946 140,454 13,492
4,623 5,783 1,159
591,940 631,422 39,482
1,196,455 1,248,757 52,302
1,793,019 1,885,962 92,943
1,946,965 2,026,417 79,451
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(2022 31 )
@
)
13,542 — Vil 41
628,199 — 11,323 11,323
636,062 370,210 61,868 61,868
595,390 473,889 77,833 77,833
376,244 244,568 11,382 11,382
369,368 281,795 17,924 17,924
312,246 129,748 8,517 8,517
2,037,562 1,338,892 38,369 38,369
4,968,616 2,839,105 210,225 210,225
@
)
5,025,295 4,164,073 116,345 116,345
10,467,033 7,602,414 228,304 228,304
681,211 383,734 3,211 3,211
16,173,541 12,150,222 115,170 115,170
@
)
44,000 44,000 302
185,500 178,000 2
229,500 222,000 305
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@
)
19,225 — 189 189
759,783 — 8,536 8,536
546,690 546,690 67,712 67,712
476,391 403,990 38,589 38,589
429,789 317,824 33,794 33,794
351,388 294,890 41,342 41,342
256,177 182,037 5,036 5,036
234,180 183,301 4,021 4,021
1,999,748 1,490,829 1,073 1,073
5,073,374 3,419,564 170,623 170,623

@
)
6,328,807 5,653,213 130,754 130,754
13,866,537 9,491,417 362,627 362,627
518,059 180,293 932 932
20,713,404 15,324,925 232,804 232,804

@
)
44,000 43,000 28
202,000 183,000 26
246,000 226,000 54
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(
1,311
806
€Y
(2022 31 (2023 31 )
627,018 608,865
555,376 529,077
71,641 79,788
@
29.2 (2021 2022 31 )
28.9 (2022 2023 31 )
©)
(€D
€Y
( 2021 ( 2022
2022 31 2023 31 )
40,791 41,375
1,637 2,072
499 642
1,235 1,238
2,392 7,939
2,074 664
41,375 35,578
@
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(©))
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )

29,260 19,387

23,138 17,419

6,121 1,968

12,115 16,190

18,236 18,159

18,236 18,159

18,236 18,159
(O]

( 2021 ( 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )

1,637 2,072

1,607 1,016

116 231

86 1,288
®
®

(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
0.1 4.1 0.1 5.0
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)
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
79,133 91,723
15,391 149,225
81,727 121,341
176,253 362,290
— 5,715
_ 9,786
12,387 15,502
163,865 346,788
361,528 850,234
40,753 43,872
402,282 894,107
«C ) 238,416 547,319
) )
( ) ( )
- 80,921 - 93,988
— 319,338 — 641,308
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
30.6 —
7.6 —
3.1 _
26.1 —
100
42 2021 12
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2023 2023 31
51
G
@
2023 31
®)
17,564
17,564
*
2,531
13
®)
50,694
53,862
104,557
48,110
26,969
75,080
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©)

23,755
4,073
2,603
2,603

776
494 38
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( )
( 2021 2022 31 )
( )
) )
238,289 | 1,556,834 | 47,476 | 1,842,599 | 508,015 | 2,350,615 — | 2,350,615
8,304 8,042 988 17,336 | 20,210 37,546 | 37,546 —
246,593 | 1,564,876 | 48,465 | 1,859,935 | 528,226 | 2,388,162 | 37,546 | 2,350,615
29,649 | 436,176 | 24,622 | 490,448 | 134,762 | 625,211 | 14,878 | 610,332
1,821,849 |16,213,841 | 839,028 |18,874,719 [8,089,691 [26,964,411 — [26,964,411
16,496 | 190,921 6,591 | 214,010 | 146,173 | 360,183 | 15,294 | 344,888
11,842 | 666,019 | 10,508 | 688,370 | 86,486 | 774,856 44 | 774,901
13,297 30,697 1,740 45,735 | 44,903 90,639 — 90,639
)
@ 14,878
@ 15,294
27,813 511,323 36,848
461,613
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( 2022 2023 31 )
(
) )
262,071 | 1,833,546 64,586 | 2,160,203 | 676,703 | 2,836,907 — | 2,836,907
10,818 19,880 4,130 34,830 54,379 89,209 | 89,209 —
272,889 | 1,853,426 68,717 | 2,195,034 | 731,083 | 2,926,117 | 89,209 | 2,836,907
40,079 231,810 25,066 296,956 | 106,732 403,689 | 23,247 380,441
1,817,098 |17,966,134 | 997,607 (20,780,840 | 9,105,196 (29,886,036 — 129,886,036
23,635 350,863 16,979 391,479 | 277,630 669,110 | 53,815 615,294
16,306 676,484 15,263 708,054 | 110,424 818,479 40 818,519
8,292 104,209 1,655 114,156 56,818 170,975 — 170,975
)
€Y 23,247
) 53,815
29,125 694,770 48,098
616,382
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( 2021 2022 31 )
90

(€))

( )

238,289 1,480,614 631,711 2,350,615
)
@

( )

57,176 4,354,462 632,658 5,044,298

10
( 2022 2023 31 )
90

@

( )

262,071 1,745,671 829,165 2,836,907
)
@

( )

93,197 4,002,128 820,518 4,915,844

10
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2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
2,689,761 92 2,824,298 62
304,782 79 183,876 74
)
2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
478,661 288,778
( —_ J—
478,661 288,778
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
) 4,294,851 4,533,337
70,580 97,776
4,224,271 4,435,560
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2017 572,001 526,000 | 0.00 2022
(121,000)
2022 0.39 2028
2017 1,062,330 1,061,294 | 0.68 2022
) (302,724)
() 2023 [ 299 [ 344 38.50 2028
()
61,760 58,845
12,000 10,000
4,991 4,400
1,200 1,200
23,250 22,750
15,000 10,000
1,900 2,600
3,000 3,000
5,000 5,000
300 300
1 1
2007 10,253,840 10,554,585 | 0.00 2022
(3.,217,013)
) 2023 [ 56,307 [ 54,897 29.48 2048
()
() 8,890 7,901
1,339 1,298
2,475 2,475
1,876 1,555
13,815 12,579
5,125 5,875
1,250 1,200
20 2,000
300 85
1,500 4,000
85
150
3,250 1
1
12,141,880
— 11,888,172 (3l640.738) — —
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3,642,097

2,819,466

1,853,778

1,422,535

1,452,781
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( ) ( ) (@)
650,387 702,710 2.49 —
2,774,399 3,412,687 3.98 —
1,588,663 2,191,303 3.94 —
) 5,298,949 6,708,173 3.44 | 2024 2038
2,258,676 3,053,891 3.76 | 2024 2028
3,240,317 3,613,447 3.88 —
()
( )
2,924,221 2,315,467 770,627 540,881
1,578,444 1,158,917 161,838 154,687
100
@
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@
( )
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )

13,549 11,711

9,024 9,389

105,450 337,080

3,618 2,556

131,642 360,737

306 283

34 20

17,814 17,179

270,526 301,622

180,964 208,734

151,080 —

4,745 7,083

625,131 534,620

625,472 534,923

757,115 895,661
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( )
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )

4,866 5,479
4,208 8,445
9,075 13,924
751 786
9,826 14,711
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
590,382 724,325
590,382 724,325
747,432 881,375
143 425
143 425
747,288 880,949
757,115 895,661
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( )
(2021 2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
99,645 464,646
17,067 19,246
116,713 483,893
9,701 10,913
9,701 10,913
107,012 472,979
17,372 18,691
89,639 454,287
432 4,339
450 918
395 334
1 200
213 82
1,722 5,875
0 3
0 3
91,361 460,159
— 725
— 725
3,869 3,238
415 132
4,285 3,370
87,076 457,514
6,428 13,815
2,003 2,240
4,424 11,575
82,651 445,939
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( 2021 2022 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834
82,651 82,651 82,651
) 1,196 1,196
— — 82,651 82,651 1,196 81,454
78,525 78,525 590,382 747,432 143 747,288
( 2022 2023 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 590,382 747,432 143 747,288
311,995 311,995 311,995
445,939 445,939 445,939
) 282 282
— — 133,943 133,943 282 133,661
78,525 78,525 724,325 881,375 425 880,949
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( )
@
@
( )
31 2021 17
27-
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2021 (2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
12,653 13,779
303 350
168 131
2021 (2022
2022 31 ) 2023 31 )
6,164 8,724
252 685
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( )
(2022 31 )
(
&) B B B
[O) 1,580 59,483 57,902
1,580 59,483 57,902
)
)
2022 31
236,270
32,675
268,945
(2023 31 )
(
(1) — — _
[O) 1,580 61,342 59,761
1,580 61,342 59,761
)
)
2023 31
267,366
32,675
300,041
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(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
3,688 4,679
2,274 3,844
1,542 1,819
43 452
344 384
222 231
256 215
63 187
164 164
92 107
33 35
8,726 12,123
4,202 5,233
4,524 6,889
45 45
45 45
4,478 6,843
(2022 31 ) (2023 31 )
30.6 30.6
32.9 29.4
5.8 1.1
1.5 0.2
0.1 0.0
5.1 2.5
42 2021 12
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) ( )

231,900 8,116

Uber Technologies, Inc. 1,025,174 4,339
7,280,000 2,664

OPN Holdings 263,066 1,603
4,622,984 456

13,423,124 17,179

( ) | ( ) | ( ) | C ) ( ) ( )

( )

— — — 429 146 31 283
— — — 71 50 8 20

@

®)
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2023 31 79,646
1,430

FICO

)

)

~
o/

)

2023

1983
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’ s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2023, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financia statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in al materia respects, the financia position of the Company as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2023 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
credit lossesin fiscal year 2021.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We are apublic accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financia statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financia statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is amatter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosuresto which it relates.
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Retail Loan Portfolio Allowance for Credit Losses

As described in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company had retail 1oans of $79,646 million for
which an allowance for credit losses of $1,430 million was recorded as of March 31, 2023. The alowance for credit |osses
represents management’ s estimate of expected credit 1osses over the expected lifetime of the loans. Theloan lifetimeis
regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable period. Management uses statistical models to estimate lifetime
expected credit losses of the retail 1oan portfolio by applying probability of default and loss given default to the exposure at
default on aloan level basis. Probability of default models are developed from internal risk scoring models which consider
variables such as delinquency status, historical default frequency and other credit quality indicators such as |oan-to-value ratio,
book payment-to-income ratio, FICO score at origination, collateral type, and contract term. Loss given default models
forecast the extent of losses given that a default has occurred and consider variables such as collateral, trends in recoveries,
historical loss severity and other contract structure variables. Exposure at default represents the expected outstanding principal
balance, including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable. The lifetime expected credit losses incorporate the
probability weighted forward looking macroeconomic forecasts for baseline, favorable, and adverse scenarios. If management
does not believe the models reflect lifetime expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment is made to reflect management
judgment regarding observable changes in recent or expected economic trends and conditions, portfolio composition, and other
relevant factors.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the retail loan portfolio allowance for
credit losses is acritical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in determining the estimate of the retail
loan portfolio allowance for credit losses, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in
performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence relating to probability of default and loss given default assumptions and
the qualitative adjustment used in estimating the allowance for credit losses, and (ii) the audit effort involved the use of
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures also included, among others, testing management’ s process
for estimating the retail loan portfolio allowance for credit losses by (i) evaluating the appropriateness of the models used to
estimate the retail 1oan portfolio allowance for credit losses, (i) testing certain data used in the estimate, and (iii) evaluating the
reasonableness of probability of default and loss given default assumptions and the qualitative adjustment, which also involved
the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to perform these procedures to test management’s process.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Ddllas, Texas

June 2, 2023

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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